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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon.  I am Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano

          4  and I chair this Committee on Housing and Buildings.

          5                 Our agenda today will include two

          6  proposed pieces of legislation; Intro. 232 and

          7  Intro. 433.

          8                 The first item, Proposed Intro.

          9  Number 232, would amend the Administrative Code of

         10  the City of New York in relation to the approval and

         11  disapproval of building permits.

         12                 The second item, Intro. Number 433

         13  would amend the Administrative Code of the City of

         14  New York in relation to the issuance of permits when

         15  there are outstanding obligations to the city.

         16                 These two bills are similar in

         17  intent, but they vary in scope.

         18                 Intro. 232, sponsored by Council

         19  Member David Weprin, would prohibit the Department

         20  of Buildings from issuing building permits and

         21  approving plans to an owner, lessee, or co- op owner

         22  who has failed to pay any fines or penalties for a

         23  violation of the Building or Electrical Code.

         24                 Also, if DOB were not able to gain

         25  access to investigate a complaint, or to conduct an
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          2  inspection, the owner may not apply for permits.

          3  DOB may issue a permit if the owner submits valid

          4  proof of payment, or of a payment agreement that

          5  would satisfy all fines within six months.

          6                 Additionally, either the permit must

          7  be necessary to correct the condition that is the

          8  source of the violation or fine, or be necessary to

          9  eliminate an unsafe or hazardous condition.

         10                 Finally, if any person with at least

         11  a twenty percent ownership interest in the property

         12  owes any fines or penalties, DOB would be prohibited

         13  from issuing a permit or approving plans.

         14                 Intro. Number 433, which is sponsored

         15  by Councilwoman Helen Sears, would prohibit both the

         16  Department of Buildings and the Department of

         17  Transportation from issuing permits and approving

         18  plans when an owner, lessee, or co- op owner has

         19  failed to pay a wide variety of fines, civil

         20  penalties, taxes and charges.

         21                 These include fines and penalties for

         22  violations of the laws regarding Streets and

         23  Sidewalks, and for violations of the Building,

         24  Electrical and Housing Maintenance Codes.

         25                 They also include arrears in taxes,
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          2  assessments, sewer rents and surcharges and water

          3  rents.

          4                 Intro. 433 contains the same

          5  restrictions as Intro. 232, but they apply to a

          6  larger group of owners.

          7                 We today have Steve Kramer who will

          8  represent the Administration Chief of Staff, the

          9  Department of Buildings.  He will give testimony,

         10  and we have David Wolock from the Department of

         11  Transportation who will not give testimony but he

         12  will be available to answer any questions anyone may

         13  have.

         14                 Members of the Committee that are

         15  here with me; on my right, always, Council Member

         16  James Oddo, left, Council Woman Letitia James,

         17  Council Man Tony Avella, Council Woman Helen Sears,

         18  Council Woman Melinda Katz, right in the middle,

         19  Council Member Robert Jackson.

         20                 I would like to call on Council

         21  Member Sears.  Would you like to speak about your

         22  legislation?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         24  much, Madam Chair.

         25                 I really appreciate the effort and
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          2  the time that was put into this, and I really thank

          3  you.

          4                 We are here today for a hearing on

          5  the Committee on Housing and Buildings on two bills

          6  dealing with the issuance of permits when there are

          7  outstanding obligations to the City.

          8                 All to often, owners of a dwelling

          9  who apply and receive permits, have unpaid fines,

         10  penalties or arrears.

         11                 I think it is a mockery of the system

         12  to think that a person can receive a permit to, for

         13  example, tear down a dwelling and build a new

         14  structure while there are still penalties on the

         15  prior dwelling.

         16                 Just such an occurrence came to my

         17  attention as a result of a concerned constituent of

         18  my district, who contacted my office to complain

         19  about a dwelling in my district.  The dwelling was

         20  scheduled to be demolished and a three- family

         21  apartment house was to be constructed in its stead.

         22                 My office examined whether or not the

         23  owner had taken out the proper permits to do the

         24  work that was to begin, and found that the proper

         25  permits had been issued but the owner owed thousands
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          2  of dollars in Department of Building fines.

          3                 For myself, I find it inexcusable

          4  that permits can be issued with outstanding fines

          5  still on the record.  An owner who has outstanding

          6  fines, violations and arrears, and who has applied

          7  to do the work on his or her dwelling, must pay his

          8  or her obligations prior to commencing work.

          9                 I can say that, from what I have seen

         10  throughout my district and in other parts of the

         11  City, this has lead to not only additional

         12  violations but really tearing apart the preservation

         13  of the communities, and the quality- of- life in

         14  them.  I have found that those who really do build,

         15  and build with integrity, they do not have those

         16  outstanding fines.  The ones that do, and I know

         17  there are other issues, but the ones that

         18  continually do that, and I suspect they are

         19  repetitive without even asking about such a thing,

         20  that really needs to be corrected.

         21                 Intro. 433 is here, and we are

         22  hearing on it today, it would amend the

         23  Administrative Code of the City of New York by

         24  requiring that permits not be given by the

         25  Commissioner of Transportation under Title 19 of the
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          2  Administrative Code, and no plans may be filed or

          3  permits given by the Commissioner of Buildings under

          4  Title 27 of the Administrative Code unless all fines

          5  or civil penalties, violations or arrears in taxes,

          6  assessments, sewer rents, sewer charges, or water

          7  rents, plus interest are paid on an`agreement to

          8  pay' has been reached.  This bill applies to any

          9  owner, lessee or owners of shares allocated to a

         10  dwelling.  This bill in no way is meant to castigate

         11  or punish anyone, but is meant to be a tool for the

         12  City of New York to resolve outstanding legal

         13  conditions on dwellings before further work is done

         14  on them.  I would also note, that this bill was

         15  meant to be as broad as possible in its application,

         16  and that I am open to limiting its reach if for some

         17  reason the amending would be in the public interest.

         18                 In conclusion, I once again want to

         19  thank the Chair, Council Member Provenzano, and the

         20  Counsel to the Committee, Terzah Nasser, for their

         21  work in putting this hearing together.

         22                 I am open and I am here to listen to

         23  all the testimony, and certainly, for any of you

         24  that can make proposals how you think it can be

         25  tweaked, if for some reason you are not in accord
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          2  with this, I welcome that.

          3                 Thank you again, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

          5  Council woman Sears.

          6                 Mr. Kramer will be testifying on both

          7  bills jointly I think, right?  And, we will be

          8  taking questions on either one. Since they are so

          9  similar, we will just be doing the two of them

         10  together.

         11                 We have also been joined by Council

         12  Member Gale Brewer.

         13                 Steve.

         14                 MR. KRAMER:  Good afternoon

         15  Chairperson Provenzano and members of the Committee

         16  on Housing and Buildings.

         17                 My name is Stephen Kramer, and I am

         18  the Chief of Staff of the New York City Department

         19  of Buildings.

         20                 I am appearing on behalf of the

         21  Department's Commissioner, Patricia Lancaster, who

         22  is unavailable for testimony this afternoon.

         23                 Sitting next to me today is David

         24  Wolock, on my right, Deputy Commissioner for

         25  External Affairs for the Department of
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          2  Transportation.

          3                 On Commissioners Lancaster's behalf,

          4  I want to thank you for this opportunity to testify

          5  today concerning Intros. 232 and 433 of 2004,

          6  regarding the issuance of permits when there are

          7  outstanding violations or obligations to the City.

          8                 From the Department of Buildings'

          9  perspective, the substance and impact of each bill

         10  is similar.  Intro. 232 adds new provisions to the

         11  Building Code that would prohibit the filing of

         12  plans or applying for permits where a building

         13  owner, lessee or co- op owner, as it refers to

         14  owners of shares, we believe that is a co- op owner,

         15  has failed to pay any fine or penalty imposed under

         16  Subchapter one of Title 26, under the Building Code,

         17  or under the Electrical Code.

         18                 Intro. 232 would also prohibit

         19  applying for permits when there is an outstanding

         20  violation.

         21                 Additionally, Intro. 232 would

         22  prohibit applying for permits when the Department

         23  has made two unsuccessful attempts to gain access to

         24  a property for inspections.

         25                 Whether prohibition is due to the
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          2  failure to pay any outstanding money, Intro. 232

          3  does have two exceptions.

          4                 First, the bill allows DOB to approve

          5  plans or issue permits where the building owner,

          6  lessee or co- op owner either has submitted proof of

          7  payment, or has submitted proof of a payment plan

          8  that satisfies the outstanding obligations within

          9  six months, and if the plans or permit are necessary

         10  to correct the violation or unnecessary to eliminate

         11  a dangerous condition.

         12                 Second, whether prohibition on

         13  issuing permits is due to failure to gain access,

         14  applications may be filed only if all these

         15  conditions are satisfied, and an inspection is

         16  conducted that does not lead to the issuance of

         17  violations.

         18                 Intro. 232 also requires that

         19  whenever permit requests are submitted, the

         20  Department must ascertain whether anyone with a

         21  twenty percent ownership stake in the property, for

         22  which the permit application is being filed, has any

         23  outstanding Building Code or Electrical Code fines

         24  or violations on other properties that he or she

         25  might own.
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          2                 Intro. 433 contains all the substance

          3  of Intro. 232 that I have just described, but also

          4  applies to the issuance of DOT permits.

          5                 Furthermore, Intro. 433 expands the

          6  group of affected jobs that cannot receive a permit.

          7    They would prohibit permits where the building

          8  owner, lessee or co- op owner has failed to pay any

          9  fines or penalties, or has failed to correct any

         10  violations imposed under Chapter one of Title 19.

         11  It would prohibit permits where the building owner

         12  has unpaid taxes, assessments, water or sewer bills.

         13                 The Department recognizes that the

         14  failure of some property owners to correct

         15  violations, particularly hazardous ones, does

         16  present a significant public safety concern.

         17                 We therefore appreciate the intent

         18  behind the two bills, and we agree that there should

         19  be incentives for recalcitrant building owners to

         20  correct violations, and to pay any outstanding fines

         21  or penalties of taxes.

         22                 However, the enforcement methods of

         23  these bills will have unintended consequences that,

         24  in our view, outweigh any benefits.  And, I would

         25  like to describe them to you now.
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          2                 First, from a policy perspective, the

          3  Department's greatest concern is that these bills

          4  would encourage building owners to circumvent our

          5  permit process.  By putting up these financial

          6  roadblocks to permit issuance, the bills might

          7  actually discourage building owners from getting

          8  work permits and encourage people to "drop out" of

          9  the permitting process, to perform more work

         10  illegally, without plans from an architect or an

         11  engineer, or permits.

         12                 Illegal construction work has obvious

         13  adverse safety and quality- of- life consequences

         14  for City residents.

         15                 Over the last decade, the Department

         16  has seen a dramatic increase in permits issued and

         17  jobs filed.  For example, construction applications

         18  alone have risen from 36,000 in 1996 to over 65,000

         19  in 2004, which is an increase of more than 80

         20  percent in eight years.

         21                 While some of this is certainly due

         22  to increased construction activity, I believe that a

         23  very substantial portion is due to increased

         24  compliance by building owners with Department of

         25  Building's permit requirements.  This is the trend

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  we must encourage, and we believe that the proposals

          3  before us could unintentionally reverse that trend.

          4                 Safety is also at the heart of our

          5  second, related policy concern with these two bills.

          6

          7                 As I mentioned earlier, under the

          8  bills, when a building owner owes money to the City,

          9  a permit may be issued only in limited

         10  circumstances.  Specifically, a permit may be issued

         11  only when proof has been submitted of payment or a

         12  payment plan has been submitted and when the permit

         13  is necessary to correct the condition that caused

         14  the violation, or to eliminate some other dangerous

         15  condition.  This appears to subordinate safety

         16  concerns to revenue collection.  Permits correcting

         17  the condition cannot be issued until outstanding

         18  money is paid, or a plan for payment is submitted,

         19  even if the work that needs to be performed is

         20  emergency work.

         21                 While revenue collection is of course

         22  important to the City, as a policy matter, the

         23  Department of Buildings cannot support a proposal

         24  that would force a condition to remain in place

         25  because a building owner cannot or will not meet a
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          2  financial obligation.  Indeed, under Intro. 433 the

          3  financial obligation, for example, a real estate tax

          4  or a water bill, might not even be related to the

          5  hazard.

          6                 These provisions of the bills will

          7  ultimately either encourage building owners to

          8  attempt to correct violations by performing illegal,

          9  unpermitted work, or cause them not to correct the

         10  hazards at all.  I am sure that we are all in

         11  agreement that these would be highly undesirable

         12  outcomes.

         13                 In addition, under Intro. 433, when

         14  the appropriate taxes, assessments, et cetera have

         15  not been paid, issuance of all permits pertaining to

         16  that buildings owner's property is blocked. This is

         17  the case even when the person seeking to obtain the

         18  permit is not the building owner.

         19                 For instance, a different co- op

         20  owner, or a tenant such as a restaurant or other

         21  small business.  This seems quite unfair.  And not

         22  only would the bills force DOB or DOT to take the

         23  extra step of identifying the building owner and

         24  anyone with at least a 20 percent ownership

         25  interest, but if outstanding money was found to be
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          2  due, the Department of Buildings and Department of

          3  Transportation would be forced to block the work

          4  from occurring.  This could place a financial

          5  hardship upon an entirely innocent party, the

          6  restaurant owner in the example I just gave.       For

          7  owners of small businesses, the City can already be

          8  a challenging enough place to do business without

          9  facing this complication.

         10                 From an operational perspective,

         11  these bills also have significant problems.

         12  Currently all money due to the various City agencies

         13  are not kept in the same information systems.      Moreover

         14  , even if they were all in the same data base

         15  system, there would be an inevitable delay in

         16  updates unless everyone paid on- line by credit

         17  card.  At this time, different City agencies have no

         18    mechanism to get a "real time" response from the

         19  Department of Finance concerning all outstanding

         20  obligations that a homeowner, lessee or co- op owner

         21  might have to the City.  Since the bills' provisions

         22  are triggered by money owed on any of a building

         23  owner's properties, a simple search of the City's

         24  records by "borough, block and lot", will not

         25  suffice.  The particular building owner may owe
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          2  money related to numerous other properties. The

          3  building owner may also owe "in personam" judgements

          4  to the City that are not tied to a particular

          5  property and, therefore, will not even appear on a

          6  block and lot search.

          7                 Creating a information system capable

          8  of performing this type of search and getting it up

          9  and running would be a major informational

         10  technology project that would take a significant

         11  amount of staff.  It would also require a

         12  significant financial investment.  Yet creating such

         13  a "real time" system would be essential for either

         14  bill to be workable.  If the Department of Buildings

         15  or Transportation were unable to identify a building

         16  owner's obligation in "real time," if either of the

         17  bills passed, the agencies might find themselves in

         18  the position of refusing permit issuance to building

         19  owners who had made payments, but the payments had

         20  simply not been entered into the database.         Alternatively

         21  , the agencies might be issuing permits to building

         22  owners who had outstanding obligations that had not

         23  yet made their way into the relevant computer

         24  systems.

         25                 Without a "real time" system in place
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          2  to support these bills, Departments would end up

          3  unfairly granting permits to many who owe money and

          4  denying permits to other who do not.

          5                 This confusion would be multiplied by

          6  the fact that neither agency is in a position to

          7  identify whether "any person with at least a twenty

          8  percent ownership interest" in the relevant property

          9  owes the applicable money.

         10                 For properties with multiple owners,

         11  the agencies could only discover these persons if

         12  the voluntarily identified themselves, or by having

         13  someone read the deeds of every property for which

         14  an application was filed, assuming the deeds were

         15  not issued in a corporate name, or by issuing

         16  subpoenas to every applicant.  Either of these

         17  options would have the effect of dramatically

         18  slowing permit issuance, and thereby, discourage

         19  building owners from filing.

         20                 Finally, DOT has informed us that

         21  various city, state and federal laws and regulations

         22  require the continuous provision of utility and

         23  franchise services.  The bills would require

         24  withholding permits to these public utilities, which

         25  would prevent them from providing this mandated
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          2  service.

          3                 Despite the concerns I have just

          4  outlined, as mentioned before, the Department of

          5  Buildings does appreciate the intentions behind

          6  these bills.  The Department has been taking its own

          7  steps to address what is admittedly an ongoing

          8  problem concerning the persistence of unresolved

          9  hazardous violations.

         10                 Two strategies in particular bear

         11  mentioning.

         12                 First, the Department has instituted

         13  a hazardous violation monitoring program.  Under

         14  this program, the Department's inspectors monitor

         15  all open hazardous ECB violations on a three- month

         16  cycle.  If a building owner has not corrected a

         17  hazardous violation, on a three- month cycle, the

         18  Department automatically reinspects.

         19                 Second, as part of its Model Code

         20  Program, the IBC adoption, the Department is in the

         21  process of evaluating a grant of additional

         22  enforcement powers concerning hazardous violations.

         23                 Specifically, we are considering a

         24  proposal that would require building owners to

         25  certify correction of hazardous violations, and that
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          2  would empower the Department to issue violations for

          3  failure to certify the correction.

          4                 Currently, only the correction of

          5  non- hazardous violations is required to by

          6  certified.  This has led to the anomalous result

          7  that the Department has fewer enforcement tools for

          8  the correction of hazardous than for non- hazardous

          9  violations. This proposal would make it far less

         10  cumbersome for building owners to correct

         11  violations, and get them added into our data system.

         12                 In this regard, one of the

         13  interesting things the Department has learned in its

         14  on- going re- inspection program has been the extent

         15  of violations that building owners have actually

         16  corrected but that they have not been filed as

         17   "corrected" in the Department's computer system.

         18                 Specifically, we often find that when

         19  an inspector re- inspects buildings with large

         20  numbers of violations, many of the violating

         21  conditions have already been corrected, but the

         22  building owner has failed to notify the Department

         23  that he has done so.

         24                 For example, earlier this year we re-

         25  inspected buildings with ten or more "open hazardous
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          2  violations".  We discovered that over half of the

          3  violations had been corrected.

          4                 Currently, violations often remain

          5   "open" in our database although the hazardous

          6  condition no longer exists. Enabling a building

          7  owner to certify the correction of a hazardous

          8  condition would help alleviate the problem, and we

          9  are very much considering putting this in our

         10  proposed legislation for the IBC.

         11                 In sum, the particular methods

         12  prescribed in these bills, from a policy

         13  perspective, will likely have unintended

         14  consequences that outweigh any benefits of code

         15  compliance or revenue increase.  In our view, the

         16  bills could actually promote illegal work and impede

         17  public safety, as well as punish innocent parties

         18  and small businesses for the misdeeds of others.

         19  They raise operational concerns that seem all but

         20  insurmountable at this time.  Thus, despite our

         21  recognition of the construction intention behind the

         22  bills, we cannot support them.

         23                 Thank you, and Mr. Wolock and I will

         24  be glad to answer any questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you
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          2  Mr. Kramer.

          3                 We have been joined by Council Member

          4  Leroy Comrie, and Council Member David Weprin who

          5  would like to say a few words, I think, on this

          6  bill.  And, also, Council Member Lew Fidler.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 Good afternoon, I want to thank the

         10  Chair of the Housing and Buildings Committee,

         11  Madeline Provenzano for bringing this important

         12  issue to a hearing.

         13                 I would also like to thank my fellow

         14  council members who have signed on to support Intro.

         15  232.

         16                 I have seen firsthand the

         17  frustrations and concerns my constituents have with

         18  current trends in development and construction, in

         19  my case, in eastern Queens.  These concerns are in

         20  no way isolated in my district.  In fact, these

         21  alarming trends are fast becoming a citywide

         22  emergency.

         23                 Developers and building owners have

         24  become very savvy in avoiding fines and violations,

         25  and yet, continuing to receive building permits from

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the Buildings Department.

          3                 This is not right.  A developer or

          4  building owner with unpaid and outstanding building

          5  fines and violations should not be allowed by the

          6  City of New York to receive yet another building

          7  permit.  We must hold these people accountable.

          8  Holding developers and building owners accountable

          9  is the intent of my bill, Intro. 232, which gives

         10  the Commissioner of Buildings the authority to deny

         11  building permits to owners who have unresolved

         12  building violations or unpaid fines.

         13                 While I agree there are many reforms

         14  to be made to the Department of Buildings, I do not

         15  believe that Into. 232 puts the cart before the

         16  horse as some choose to argue.  Nor do I believe

         17  that the plan proposed by this bill is in any way

         18  unreasonable or unfeasible for building owners to

         19  follow.

         20                 Intro. 232 yields significantly way

         21  in the payment of fines, allowing for up to six

         22  months to pass before payment of the fine, or even

         23  just proof of an agreement to pay the fine must be

         24  shown.

         25                 This bill also allows permits to be
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          2  issued at the discretion of the Commissioner for

          3  situations where permits may be required to cure

          4  existing violations.  There is no reason to hold up

          5  rectification of a violation, a potential building

          6  safety hazard, by barring a building owner from

          7  obtaining a building permit.  Unpaid fines and

          8  outstanding building violations must be taken

          9  seriously by building owners and developers.  They

         10  cannot simply lay blame on others, and as a matter

         11  of fact, I think this bill is a bill that is good

         12  for reputable building owners because, unfortunately

         13  in that industry, a few bad apples reflect on the

         14  entire industry, which is not necessarily the case

         15  on the entire industry, or even a majority of the

         16  industry.  It is just a small percentage of abusers

         17  that are really taking advantage of the system.

         18                 Violations are not the fault of the

         19  Department of Buildings.  They are not the fault of

         20  the Environmental Control Board, and they are

         21  certainly not the fault of the community.  The fault

         22  can only rest on the shoulders of the developers and

         23  owners of the buildings in which a violation is

         24  found.

         25                 Using a parallel example, New Yorkers
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          2  would not accept that a driver who receives multiple

          3  speeding tickets should continue to be permitted to

          4  drive a car.  No New Yorkers would expect that

          5  driver to be held accountable, they would expect.

          6  The same rule of thumb should be used to hold

          7  developers and building owners with outstanding

          8  building violations and unpaid fines accountable as

          9  well.

         10                 Thank you very much Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You are

         12  welcome.

         13                 I have one question, Mr. Kramer.

         14                 In your testimony, page five, second

         15  paragraph it reads; `Finally DOT has informed us',

         16  and actually the question will probably be answered

         17  by David,`DOT has informed us that various city,

         18  state and federal laws and regulations require the

         19  continuous provision of utility and franchise

         20  services.  The bills', meaning the two that we are

         21  having a hearing on,`would require withholding

         22  permits to these public utilities which would

         23  prevent them from providing this mandated service'.

         24                 I would just ask you to clarify it

         25  because I do not see any place in the bill where
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          2  they mention public utilities.  So, if you could--.

          3                 MR. WOLOCK:  They are permittee's of

          4  the Department, so for instance, the entity that

          5  takes out the most street cut permits is Con Edison.

          6    So, if Con Edison needed to do work to let us say,

          7  for instance, restore electricity to a building,

          8  they would come to us for a permit.  And based on

          9  the current language in the bill, if the owner of

         10  that property still owed, say some taxes if they

         11  were in arrears, we could not give out that permit.

         12  Yet, we are obligated under public service law to

         13  allow for the continual provision, electrical

         14  service, and I think it is important to remember, at

         15  least from DOT's perspective, that the single

         16  largest permittee's that we have are they utilities.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, I

         18  think David is jumping up and down.  He wants to

         19  respond to that since it is--.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes, I

         21  believe the exception that I made reference to in

         22  the bill would cover that, which would basically

         23  give the Building Commissioner discretion in certain

         24  cases.  Such as, allowing permits to correct

         25  existing violations and rectify a violation which is

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  a potential building safety hazard, which I believe

          3  your example would be covered under.

          4                 MR. WOLOCK:  Right, this is more for,

          5  in terms of the other bill, which refers to both the

          6  Department of Buildings and the Department of

          7  Transportation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is

          9  true, it is Helen's bill.

         10                 Okay, as long as we are--.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Is it the

         12  entity seeking the permit, is the utility?  So,

         13  regardless of the fact that that homeowner has

         14  outstanding taxes, isn't the entity in question who

         15  theoretically  could be disqualified from getting

         16  the--.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  That is what

         18  I would think.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  The entity

         20  that would be disqualified under this bill from

         21  being able to get a permit, is the utility, and the

         22  utility is not the one that does not have the

         23  outstanding fine?

         24                 MR. WOLOCK:  Yes, I guess that we

         25  would just need to clarify what the language in the
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          2  bill, what in fact it says at this point, it is just

          3  a little ambiguous, perhaps you could interpret it

          4  either way.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You are

          6  right, I mean if the person who owns the house is

          7  paying their taxes, it should not have anything to

          8  do with Con Edison or whomever, or whatever.

          9                 We have also been joined by Council

         10  woman Diana Reyna.

         11                 Helen Sears, you have questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         13                 I do not quite understand why the

         14  utilities were put in with that because that does

         15  not make sense, and that is your interpretation, and

         16  maybe the language has to be looked at so that,

         17  because I thought always, if we are talking about a

         18  safety hazard in the City of New York, an immediate

         19  one, that that takes precedence over every other

         20  existing thing.  So, I find it hard to even hard to

         21  even have the utilities brought into this.  But

         22  certainly we will look at that to be sure that that

         23  is not ambiguous.  If it is, that is going to have

         24  to be tightened up. But, I am confused as to why you

         25  think the utilities would be deprived of their
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          2  permits.  I do not think that they would be.

          3                 And a couple of other questions that

          4  I have is that, I am very confused why you mix in

          5  illegal work and avoiding permits.

          6                 One of the things both agencies have

          7  been pursuing is to really crack down on the illegal

          8  work that is being done, and to even suggest that a

          9  bill could promote this, I think is that if we are

         10  to do things or not do things because of the

         11  possibilities of illegal work being done, I think is

         12  a very poor defense for not supporting any bill, any

         13  bill.  And I am not event talking about this, but

         14  any bill.

         15                 The fact is that we direct our

         16  energies into being constructive and being positive,

         17  and to hear a response that it could promote illegal

         18  work, I think, is a very, very weak defense because

         19  the objective, and one of the objectives of both the

         20  agencies and any of the other agencies is to

         21  absolutely prevent that, and the Buildings

         22  Department is inundated with illegal complaints,

         23  inundated.  And one of the things we have to look at

         24  when we do the budget is the fact, and it has been

         25  testified by the Commissioner, that certainly more
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          2  inspectors are needed.  So, I do not think I can

          3  quite buy that argument.

          4                 MR. KRAMER:  Well, if I might

          5  respond.  I think, first I want to say that we are

          6  very much aware, of course, of the problem of

          7  illegal work, and we are very grateful to the

          8  Council and to this Committee, and the members of

          9  the Committee for having given us additional

         10  inspectors, which you have, during what has been a

         11  very difficult budget cycle.

         12                 I think that it comes down to, we

         13  know that nobody wants to promote illegal work, and

         14  certainly no one in this room does.  And we have a

         15  lot of allies in that, both in the contractors and

         16  in unions, and in homeowners associations and I

         17  think 311, and the availability to being able to go

         18  on- line and seeing if the work next door to you is

         19  permitted, has really been a tremendous assistance

         20  to us, and I think it is part of the reasons why we

         21  see so many more applications for permits.

         22                 I gave you some figures in the

         23  testimony but if you actually look at all of the

         24  permits we issue, from electrical and boiler and

         25  facade work and what have you, we issued over
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          2  300,000 permits last year.

          3                 When it becomes extremely difficult,

          4  bureaucratic is what people would say, to get a

          5  permit, "ah, my neighbor did not pay for the

          6  violation that was issued for the illegal work done

          7  in his apartment, or you know, he put in some

          8  windows that do not comply with the Code, since he

          9  is in violation, but I cannot get a permit, and I am

         10  indeed in my co- op."  That type of thing has

         11  happened where there has been outstanding elevator

         12  violations and someone wanted to do work on the

         13  apartment, it tends to, in addition to driving

         14  people crazy, but it tends to push them out of the

         15  system.

         16                 They say, "if I cannot get the

         17  permit, I know a contractor who will go out and do

         18  it without the permit."  And that is what we are

         19  worried about because we have seen such a tremendous

         20  increase here in compliance, and I think that is,

         21  with your assistance, and that is what we are

         22  worried about here is that we know we do not, nobody

         23  intends for this to happen, but we are worried that

         24  it might.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I appreciate
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          2  your concern, but I really have to respond to a

          3  couple of things.

          4                 You talked about existing elevator

          5  offenses.  Well, I have 20- story buildings and I

          6  can tell you when those elevators are out, we are

          7  talking about 20 stories, and when they have

          8  violations, and it has happened around this City,

          9  those elevators are in dire need of repair and an

         10  extreme safety factor.

         11                 So, I have to push that aside and I

         12  must preface my comments that I have great respect

         13  for the Commissioner and the Agency.  She has been

         14  an extremely cooperative, and I have a great deal of

         15  respect for her and the work that she is trying to

         16  do in the Buildings Department.

         17                 I find it difficult to accept that

         18  you intermingle the procedures and the operations of

         19  the Agency with the intent of legislation.  That as

         20  my colleague Councilman Weprin pointed out, has been

         21  a grave, grave offense in the City of New York.  And

         22  I know that the Buildings Department is doing

         23  everything to reorganize, and successfully.

         24                 So, I find that within the

         25  bureaucracy, there are bungling operations.  There
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          2  is not doubt about that.  But that the Agencies have

          3  to look at how they can weed out those very

          4  difficult, cumbersome, and the Buildings Department,

          5  I agree with you, is one of them.

          6                 I spent almost a whole day in my

          7  borough, in the Buildings Department, and I did that

          8  to absolutely see what contractors have to go

          9  through, what developers have to go through, what

         10  homeowners have to go through, and I can tell you, I

         11  left that day thinking, "wow, wow, oh wow."  There

         12  are offenses, and there are fences but from the

         13  first floor, to the second floor, to the third

         14  floor, you are going all over the place, and you

         15  still come out not getting what you want or the

         16  right advise but that is another issue.

         17                 I do think that we must not loose

         18  sight of the fact that illegal work has been going

         19  on in this City for years, and people think they can

         20  get away with a great deal, and we increased our

         21  taxes eighteen and a half percent on homeowners, and

         22  in the two classifications because we needed to

         23  raise revenue.

         24                 The fact is that this City has

         25  outstanding fines, continually outstanding fines,
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          2  that if there was a mechanism and a law to see that

          3  they are collected, that would be a whole different

          4  issue.  And, as I said earlier, some of this can be

          5  tweaked and the comments are most welcome to make it

          6  functionable and to make it operable in a fair and

          7  reasonable way.

          8                 But I ask you, please, not to even

          9  promote or think about the illegal stuff and what

         10  may be anticipated because I prefer to take a

         11  positive approach and not a negative one.

         12                 I can tell you that we would never do

         13  anything in this City because for every`pro', there

         14  is a`con' and sometimes it seems that the negatives

         15  outweigh the positives.  But, we do what we have to

         16  do because they are the right thing to do, and I

         17  would also comment that if an owner owns 20 percent

         18  of a building, they should darn well know what their

         19  property is about.  That is a big share, and I do

         20  not know about the cost to doing this but I would

         21  think that, and I once again thank the Chair for

         22  holding this because certainly we are amenable to

         23  doing what needs to be done to make it fair and

         24  reasonable, and to work with the Administration on

         25  this.  But do not loose sight that this is an issue
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          2  that is going to be pursued and pursued because what

          3  is happening is wrong, really wrong.

          4                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council man

          6  Avella.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 First of all, I want to thank Council

         10  Member Weprin and Council Member Sears for these

         11  bills, and I certainly support the intent.

         12                 I want to back up the offer that

         13  Council Member Sears has made about tweaking both

         14  bills, and I certainly encourage the Administration

         15  to work with the sponsors and the Chair of this

         16  Committee because we need to implement something

         17  along these lines.

         18                 It is clear that we have a number of

         19  developers throughout the entire city who are just

         20  abusing the process over and over again.  And, we

         21  may be talking about 20 percent of the developers in

         22  the entire city, but they are accountable for maybe

         23  90 percent of the problems.  They know how to get

         24  around the law. We should do everything we can to

         25  stop that.
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          2                 I agree with some of the arguments

          3  that you have made here.  I do not agree, as Council

          4  Member Sears said, that we increase the possibility

          5  of people doing illegal work.  That should never be

          6  our consideration.  They do illegal work, they

          7  should be fined, they should be given violations, we

          8  should not use that as our criteria not for doing

          9  something.

         10                 You mentioned an argument about the

         11  financial cost of putting together a computer system

         12  that can compare the notes from all the agencies.

         13  Well, you know, maybe we need to do that. And maybe

         14  we need to allocate the money for that to be done.

         15                 I did want to comment although, on

         16  page five of your testimony, two things, which my

         17  colleagues to the left side of the room here, we all

         18  sort of agree.  First of all, you mentioned that the

         19  Department has instituted a hazardous violation

         20  monitoring program.  "Under this program DOB

         21  monitors all open hazardous Environmental Control

         22  Board violations on a three- month cycle, if a

         23  building owner has not corrected a hazardous

         24  violation, on a three- month cycle DOB automatically

         25  reinspects."
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          2                 Is that really happening because none

          3  of us have ever heard of this, and it is a little

          4  hard for us, with no disrespect intended, to believe

          5  it is actually happening.  Because we know that you

          6  have limited inspectors, and for us to believe that

          7  there is a three- month reinspection process, I find

          8  it a little hard to believe.

          9                 I would appreciate if you could give

         10  us some facts on that, and maybe provide it to the

         11  Committee Chair because if that is happening, that

         12  is a good step.  It is just that knowing what is

         13  really going on in the City, it is a little hard to

         14  swallow.

         15                 The next paragraph about, "as part of

         16  its Model Code Program the Department is in the

         17  process of evaluating a grant of additional

         18  enforcement powers.  Considering a proposal that

         19  would require building owners to certify correction

         20  of hazardous violations, and that non- hazardous

         21  violations are required to be certified", I assume

         22  you are talking about self- certification?

         23                 MR. KRAMER:  It is not actually, the

         24  term self certification is not generally used for

         25  this.  When a homeowner or a building owner gets a
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          2  notice of violation from the Department of

          3  Buildings, there is usually a date on it by which

          4  they have to comply.  If it is a non- hazardous

          5  violation, let's say they will get 45 days from the

          6  issuance date to comply.

          7                 If it is non- hazardous, they can

          8  under the Administrative Code, they can certify to

          9  the Department that it has been corrected.  The

         10  owner can certify and provide proof that it has been

         11  corrected through photographs, through a contractors

         12  bill, what have you.  And that will be entered into

         13  our computer system through the certification, and

         14  no fine will have to be paid, and no appearance will

         15  have to be made at the Environmental Control Board.

         16                 If it is a hazardous violation, there

         17  is a prohibition on that kind of certification.  I

         18  think the idea on that originally was that because

         19  it is hazardous, we should require an appearance at

         20  ECB.

         21                 I think our thought is now that it is

         22  more important to, both though photographs and

         23  digital photography and what have you, that perhaps

         24  we can take advantage of this and have owners

         25  certify the correction.

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Okay.

          3                 MR. KRAMER:   And then, we do an

          4  audit program of the certified corrections.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  But the audit

          6  is a certain percentage, not necessarily--.

          7                 MR. KRAMER:  Yes, that is what an

          8  audit primarily --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Well, and I

         10  think, and you are probably going to hear from some

         11  of my colleagues, that that is probably going to be

         12  a concern for us.

         13                 MR. KRAMER:  Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  That self-

         15  certification or the owners certifying to some

         16  extent, without a re- inspection, becomes a problem,

         17  and not necessarily all the conditions corrected

         18  that they say are.  To extent that to hazardous, I

         19  think, is a problem for many of us, and we should

         20  take a real serious look at that before the Agency

         21  implements that policy.

         22                 MR. KRAMER:  Right, well we could not

         23  do that without legislation, so we would be here

         24  specifically and discuss that with you.  And, if we

         25  decide to go there, we would certainly, one of the
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          2  issues to be discussed would be`what type of proof

          3  would be adequate', and whether or not it is mere

          4  photograph and an affidavit, or whether or not you

          5  need something more.  Because, we understand that

          6  but we did find when we went out to some of our

          7  largest, under our program when we identify target

          8  buildings with a lot of outstanding violations, we

          9  went back and we found that some over 50 percent of

         10  the hazardous violations had been corrected but they

         11  had not bothered to certify, and they were just

         12  listed as open, and that is what prompted that

         13  thought.  But, it is something that would require

         14  legislation, and it is not something we would do

         15  without discussing with you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you.

         17                 Thank you Madam Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         19  Member Oddo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I just want to

         21  say`Amen' to the points that Council Member Avella

         22  made just now, specific to the notion of certifying

         23  the hazardous.  I mean, the long- term should rend

         24  (phonetic), that has been voiced by the Council has

         25  been the percentage on the audit.  The carrot and
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          2  the stick, where the carrot is you get to certify

          3  and speed up the process; and the stick was, we are

          4  going to pull one of every ten jobs or one of every

          5  fifteen jobs, and we all know that that has not been

          6  the reality.

          7                 It has changed, and we have talked

          8  about this previously but the reality has been, for

          9  a very long time, that those percentages were too

         10  high, and we all, each of us in our districts, have

         11  those type of developers who are rolling the dice,

         12  and they were winning, and they were not `crapping

         13  out' for the most part.

         14                 So, that is why when we hear self-

         15  certification or professional certification, and

         16  hazardous in the same sentence, you are going to see

         17  our backs get up.

         18                 Just sticking on that point, let me

         19  ask you, why is it that so many of these violations

         20  that have been cured remain open?

         21                 Why isn't the owner rushing to prove

         22  to you, isn't it in his or her interest to get these

         23  violations off?

         24                 So, what aren't they going out and

         25  demonstrating to you that they have in fact, cured
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          2  the violation?

          3                 MR. KRAMER:  I think that is a good

          4  question that we do not really have the answer to.

          5  We have found over the last few years that as

          6  interest rates fell, and owners, homeowners in

          7  particular, of one and two- family homes, refinance

          8  their homes. They discovered they had outstanding

          9  violations, many of which were easily cured.  And,

         10  they came to us and there was a big surge of payment

         11  of back fines just as Council Member Sears

         12  mentioned, you know, that they have outstanding

         13  fines and sometimes they are not that significant.

         14  But we have seen a significant surge in the

         15  correction but I think the other is primarily a

         16  matter of sloppiness, and perhaps it was a failure

         17  on our part in terms of outreach.

         18                 We have now put up a brochure, we

         19  have developed a brochure that we have handed out on

         20  how to cure a violation.  It is up on the Web as

         21  well.  And, I know we have distributed it at

         22  our`open houses' in Staten Island, and it was very

         23  well received, and a lot of people really thanked us

         24  a lot for it.

         25                 You know, this kind of bureaucratic
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          2  problem is a two- way street, and we may not have

          3  done sufficient outreach but we have been.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  If I am

          5  homeowner or building owner, and I have a violation

          6  and I want to cure it, I invite the Department in

          7  and they bring in an inspector and they--.

          8                 MR. KRAMER:  Sometimes it is not even

          9  necessary to do that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  But is that the

         11  case sometimes though, an inspector does come over?

         12                 MR. KRAMER:  Sometimes an inspector

         13  would be planned.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  And let me ask

         15  you, when that inspector comes over to theoretically

         16  confirm that this one thing is cured, does that

         17  inspector have the ability to write additional

         18  violations, and is the point as Council Member

         19  Fidler and I were just discussing before you stepped

         20  out, is the point that building owners do not want

         21  to run the risk of having an inspector re invited

         22  into their dwelling, and say,`okay, a is fixed, but

         23  now I see a crack here or whatever' and open up

         24  Pandora's box?  I mean is there a disincentive out

         25  there?
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          2                 MR. KRAMER:  I think that that is a

          3  real problem because building inspectors are

          4  mandated and are not given the discretion to blink

          5  their eyes at a violation as you can think of the

          6  reasons why.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

          8                 MR. KRAMER:  And so there is a

          9  tension there that a homeowner may feel about

         10  whether or not he or she should get the correction

         11  off the books or risk something greater.

         12                 But, I mean, the homeowner could say

         13  and I think we,`violations in the basement, that is

         14  all I am asking you to see'. But, it is--.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  But it is in

         16  the Departments' interest of getting these open

         17  violations off because, as you said, you spend the

         18  staff power of going out and re- inspecting, and

         19  they are re- inspecting cured things.

         20                 Would not this legislation be the

         21  incentive, in part, knowing that if I have an open

         22  violation, I cannot get another permit?

         23                 Would not this legislation, in fact,

         24  be the incentive for those homeowners who are

         25  fearful of inviting an inspector back in to
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          2  actually, I mean, they have more to loose by not

          3  being able to pull additional permits?

          4                 Would not this be an incentive to

          5  help you clear the decks of all cured, but yet still

          6  open violations and you could spend your resources

          7  in another way instead of re- inspecting violations

          8  that have already been cured?

          9                 MR. KRAMER:  It might well help

         10  achieve that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         14  Woman James.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I do not know

         16  if you are aware, I am sure you are Mr. Kramer, of a

         17  report that was prepared by the New York City

         18  Comptroller, which indicated that a significant

         19  number of violations, particularly hazardous

         20  violations in the City of New York do not go, are

         21  not re- inspected, I believe you said after a three-

         22  month period of time, in fact, the Comptroller of

         23  the City of New York had documented that it took

         24  substantially longer for the Department of Buildings

         25  to look into these violations, and for them to be
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          2  corrected.

          3                 Are you aware of that report?

          4                 MR. KRAMER:  Yes, I am.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, it also

          6  calls into question the number of false

          7  certifications that are filed by builders,

          8  developers, and homeowners in the City of New York.

          9  Are you aware of that aspect of the report?

         10                 MR. KRAMER:  I read the Comptrollers'

         11  audit, and we responded to the Comptrollers audit.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And, what was

         13  your response to the Comptrollers audit?

         14                 MR. KRAMER:  I do not have that

         15  response with me but it was a detailed response, and

         16  I will be glad to provide you with a copy of that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you, I

         18  would appreciate that.

         19                 So there is, in your comments you

         20  indicated that we should be providing incentives for

         21  recalcitrant building owners to correct violations,

         22  and I guess based on some of the comments and

         23  sentiments that have been expressed today, the

         24  question is why should we be rewarding bad behavior,

         25  as opposed to continuing to find them and/or denying
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          2  them the issue of permits?

          3                 Now, I am not certain of where I

          4  stand on the legislation that has been proposed here

          5  today.  I do believe that it needs some refining and

          6  some tweaking, but I support the intent of the two

          7  pieces of legislation.

          8                 So, the question is, why are we

          9  rewarding bad behavior?

         10                 MR. KRAMER:  Well, I think that there

         11  are a couple of different issues which were

         12  mentioned, and in particular, Council Member Sears

         13  mentioned the problem, and as did Council Member

         14  Oddo concerning developers who, there is a discreet

         15  group of developers who disobey the laws whereas the

         16  majority which who do. And the real question is,

         17  what do we do about the developers and builders who

         18  repeatedly violate the rules that the Council has

         19  laid down?

         20                 One of the things that is also being

         21  discussed, and indeed, I have discussed it at some

         22  length with Council Member Oddo's staff, is a

         23  proposed bill that would require builders to be

         24  registered and licensed, effectively licensed by the

         25  Department, so that when they did something which

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  violated the Building Code, when they constructed a

          3  building in violation of the Code, particularly in

          4  situations where it is hidden, you know, and it is

          5  difficult to find, we could yank their licenses and

          6  forbid them from building.

          7                 The question here is that, and maybe

          8  that is one of the issues in terms of discussing how

          9  this bill goes, perhaps because it might apply,

         10  would prohibit a tenant, let's say a small business

         11  owner, from getting a permit when there is an

         12  unrelated violation on the building, perhaps, that

         13  is a real major concern of ours, is that the spread

         14  of it is just too wide.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

         16                 MR. KRAMER:  Because we really do not

         17  want, if a restaurant owner really needs a permit in

         18  order to conduct his business, we are very worried

         19  that we are not rewarding him, we are punishing him

         20  for somebody else's bad behavior, and we are not

         21  punishing him for his own bad behavior.  And, yes,

         22  it is possible that he can withhold rent because he

         23  cannot get his building permit, and it is the owners

         24  fault.  But, that is kind of an expensive and

         25  cumbersome way.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I do not mean

          3  to be critical, I just want to thank Commissioner

          4  Lancaster and you, and your agency for all that you

          5  have done in my district, and also DOT for

          6  addressing a number of concerns in my district.

          7                 I will be introducing legislation

          8  probably next week called`The Safe Homes Act', which

          9  speaks to this issue, particularly`C' violations,

         10  hazardous violations, and the proof that you speak

         11  of in my legislation calls for a mandatory re

         12  inspection of those`C' violations, and it does not

         13  speak to the issue of self- certification.  It

         14  requires HPD to go out and inspect, and it increases

         15  fines for individuals who fail to correct hazardous

         16  violations, and there is a significant number of

         17  violations.

         18                 As you know, Ebbets Field is the vein

         19  of my existence, and I know that as we talk about

         20  this proposed arena in the District, the Dodgers

         21  would be turning over in their grave, given what is

         22  happening at Ebbets Field today.

         23                 There is a significant number of

         24  violations at Ebbets Field, in fact, the fines total

         25  in the hundreds of thousands of dollars.  HPD,
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          2  recently, upon my demand came out and inspected the

          3  entire Ebbets Field.  The owner recently issued into

          4  a compliance order, but the amount of fines that he

          5  owes your Agency is in the hundreds of thousands of

          6  dollars, and if not hundreds, maybe tens of

          7  thousands of dollars, but it is totally unacceptable

          8  and the people are paying market rent, and living in

          9  horrible, horrible conditions.  And, it has been my

         10  position that that property should be removed, that

         11  it should be placed in third- party management, and

         12  that you should really enforce him to pay those

         13  fines.

         14                 But he has not, and he has entered

         15  into another compliance order to correct the

         16  conditions at Ebbets Field, and that can no longer

         17  continue.

         18                 So, again, the legislation which I

         19  will be forwarding you a courtesy copy, again, seeks

         20  to address those hazardous violations that I just

         21  thank you for this time.

         22                 MR. KRAMER:  We are looking forward

         23  to getting that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council
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          2  Member Fidler.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you

          4  Madam Chairwoman, and Councilwoman James, there are

          5  plenty of good reasons for the people of Brooklyn to

          6  want the Dodgers to be turning over in their grave

          7  to this day, not Ebbets Field, but many other good

          8  reasons.

          9                 First I want to commend Council

         10  Member Sears and Weprin because I think they are

         11  addressing an issue that has long bothered me, and

         12  that is the feeling amongst property owners, or many

         13  property owners, that they can ignore, particularly

         14  non hazards violations with impunity, and just leave

         15  them be.

         16                 I have heard some of your problems

         17  with the bill, and certainly some of them are very

         18  well taken and need to be fixed.

         19                 I want to explore though a possible

         20  alternative in terms of attacking non- hazardous

         21  violations.  Do you know how many buildings there

         22  are in the City of New York, is that a figure you

         23  folks know?

         24                 MR. KRAMER:  Well, there are 950,000

         25  what we call`bins' in the building information
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          2  system, so, some of those are empty lots but I think

          3  you can certainly use the figure of 850,000 to

          4  900,000.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And do you

          6  know how many of them have violations of some kind?

          7                 MR. KRAMER:  I believe that it is

          8  less than ten percent.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So, you are

         10  suggesting 85,000 to 90,000, that would be my quick

         11  ten percent--.

         12                 MR. KRAMER:  I do not know the number

         13  but my recollection is I have seen a number of

         14  closer, perhaps, on the five percent range than the

         15  ten percent range.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Okay, then

         17  the next question may be a little tougher.

         18                 Do you know how many real properties

         19  are transferred in the City of New York, in terms of

         20  its ownership in the course of a year?

         21                 MR. KRAMER:  That I do not know.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Okay.

         23                 MR. KRAMER:  I am sure the Department

         24  of Finance probably has that information but that is

         25  not something that I, what we do is when we need an
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          2  owner, we go to the Department of Finance database,

          3  the Accro System (phonetic).

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I

          5  imagine with the Accro System up and running, we

          6  will probably be able to get an answer to that

          7  question at the push of a button in the future.

          8                 I mean, the reason I ask is this, as

          9  an attorney who does a fair amount of real estate, I

         10  could tell you that at nine closings out of ten, in

         11  a small multiple dwelling, properties are

         12  transferred with non- hazardous violations of record

         13  and nobody cares, not the bank, not the seller, not

         14  the buyer.

         15                 And I am just curious as to what you

         16  might think of a provision, perhaps in lieu of

         17  these, that said that in order to record a deed for

         18  the transfer of an ownership interest in a property

         19  of the City of New York, the property must be clear

         20  of all violations.

         21                 MR. KRAMER:  I think that that is

         22  interesting, and I will tell you a couple of initial

         23  reactions I have to it.

         24                 First, I think to a great extent, the

         25  finance industry has been imposing such a
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          2  requirement because we think that that, particularly

          3  when we were out on Staten Island with the Staten

          4  Island Task Force members this past year, a lot of

          5  the complaints that people were having originally

          6  were that,`we cannot refinance because we have got

          7  an outstanding violation and it is difficult', and

          8  that is actually was one of the reasons which

          9  prompted our updating and re- issuance of this

         10  brochure on how to cure a violation.

         11                 So, I think that probably the

         12  industry has done some of that already.

         13                 But, it is really just a question, I

         14  think, of primarily of manpower, and then always the

         15  tension that you hear in discussions, which we also

         16  had in Staten Island on this issue of`invasion of

         17  privacy', of whether or not people regard it as a

         18  violation of their fourth amendment rights to be

         19  secure in their homes from unreasonable searches and

         20  seizures.  Why should the triggering of a sale

         21  require the`building police' to come in, and that is

         22  an issue that, a policy issue but is not one that I

         23  have to deal with here but I just wanted you to be

         24  aware of because the issue did come up on Staten

         25  Island in somewhat a similar context. But, I think,

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  that if their were sufficient staff to handle that,

          3  if there is sufficient staff, I certainly think that

          4  that would be something that you might want to

          5  consider.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Just to be

          7  clear, I was not suggesting that prior to the

          8  transfer of title that a building inspector must

          9  come out and certify that the property was clear of

         10  violations.

         11                 MR. KRAMER:  Oh.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I was saying

         13  that in the case of a property which has outstanding

         14  violations of record, non hazardous violations of

         15  record, that those would have to be cleared.

         16                 MR. KRAMER:  I see.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So, you would

         18  only have to have an inspector available for

         19  reinspection of a building that had an existing

         20  violation.

         21                 I would also suggest that, perhaps,

         22  for the truly minor violations, and maybe we would

         23  need to create another class of those, such as, the

         24  lighting in the stairwell is insufficient, why,

         25  because the light bulb was out when the inspector
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          2  was there, or we did not put the name and address of

          3  the managing agent in the hallway, that perhaps

          4  self- certification for those kind of violations

          5  might both remove a lot of these violations of

          6  record without taking the manpower or the womanpower

          7  of the Buildings Department away from the hazardous

          8  violations, which should be a priority.

          9                 MR. KRAMER:  It also seems like some

         10  of these concerns are really addressed to multiple

         11  dwellings, and again, if it were limited to multiple

         12  dwellings, that would reduce the number in addition,

         13  and might alleviate some of the privacy concerns,

         14  particularly on common areas, elevators, boilers,

         15  and what have you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I do not buy

         17  into the privacy concern.

         18                 I am as much of a civil libertarian

         19  as anyone sitting here but if there is a violation

         20  of record on a piece of property you own, and again,

         21  I am limiting myself to those.

         22                 MR. KRAMER:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I mean, in

         24  Staten Island I suppose the violation`du jour' is an

         25  illegal deck in the backyard, and I mean, it may
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          2  well suit the sellers interest and the buyers

          3  interest to ignore that violation, and maybe we need

          4  to deal with that issue.  The bank will catch it,

          5  and will perhaps make them tear down the deck, or

          6  someone goes to a funding company that is willing to

          7  turn a blind eye to that, I mean, that may be well

          8  and good but if there is an existing violation,

          9  under those circumstances, I do not think fourth

         10  amendment concerns apply because you would

         11  ordinarily invite that inspector in to get the

         12  violation removed of record.

         13                 And just tangentially on the, an

         14  issue, I kind of came back into the room and heard

         15  you talking about it, and you referred to a

         16  conversation that Councilman Oddo had had with

         17  Commissioner Lancaster about developing a database

         18  on developers and contractors, and licensing of

         19  developers and contractors, it is a conversation

         20  that I had in connection with a bill I introduced to

         21  the Council in 2002 with Commissioner Lancaster as

         22  well, and we were kind of promised that that would

         23  be a Buildings Department priority, and I think that

         24  for any of these solutions that are contained in

         25  either of these bills, should we go forward with
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          2  them to work, we are going to have to have that

          3  database because otherwise, X Y Z Development

          4  Corporation which has 7,000 outstanding violations

          5  from the project they did on East 84th Street in

          6  Canarsie, will not be prevented from the A B C

          7  Development Corporation, in which they are also

          8  owners, developers, contractors, building on East

          9  85th Street in Canarsie, which is exactly what

         10  happened, which is why I met with the Commissioner

         11  to begin with.

         12                 So, I would urge again that that be

         13  moved forward. That it is certainly an essential

         14  element of any plan that is designed to stop people

         15  from ignoring violations or circumventing the

         16  system, it is kind of long overdue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         18  any other questions?

         19                 Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know I am

         21  supposed to know this.

         22                 First of all I want to thank the

         23  Buildings Department for helping with a plumbing

         24  issue the other day, very quickly, so just want to

         25  let you know that.
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          2                 Right now, I listened to your

          3  testimony carefully but how do you feel the

          4  development world is correcting their own problems?

          5                 In other words, the fact of the

          6  matter is that we see some of the concerns that have

          7  been outlined and that is why the legislation has

          8  been proposed.

          9                 Do you feel that the Department is

         10  answering some of the concerns that have been

         11  expressed today, I mean I think the three- month is

         12  a challenge in terms of what we experience in the

         13  field but, just without redoing what you said today,

         14  I mean how do you sort of answer some of the

         15  concerns that are being raised?

         16                 MR. KRAMER:  Well, I think that the,

         17  as I mentioned before, we have seen, the Department

         18  of Finance has seen a significant upturn in the

         19  amount of fines being collected over, through ECB

         20  violations, and I think that is a sign of increased

         21  compliance.

         22                 We think that that, both the 311

         23  system and where people can call in so easily, with

         24  complaints about illegal work, has resulted in the

         25  fact that people may well think twice about doing
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          2  illegal work as well as the On- Line Building

          3  Information System.

          4                 So I think we have seen increased

          5  compliance in those areas, and it is something that

          6  we really want to encourage. We are going to be

          7  putting out within the next, probably by the end of

          8  November, a whole new series of building knowledge

          9  brochures to hand out to members of the community to

         10  remind them, and help educate them about the need

         11  for plumbing permits, and electrical permits, carbon

         12  monoxide detectors, and what have you.

         13                 So, we think outreach on our part is

         14  a significant part of this, and third is just having

         15  the inspectors out there in the field and we are

         16  hiring additional inspectors through your

         17  assistance, is something that really tends to almost

         18  snowball and the more people hear that somebody has

         19  had a violation or had a stop- work order issued

         20  because they were using an unlicensed contractor, an

         21  unlicensed electrician, or what have you, that

         22  really helps get the message out.

         23                 We have been working very closely

         24  with the District Manager in your community board,

         25  as well as probably everyone here. And one of the
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          2  more useful things that we have discovered is how

          3  the community board's have been helping us filter

          4  this huge volume of complaints, the upsurge in

          5  complaints that the 311 system has resulted in, and

          6  they help us focus our efforts, and one of the

          7  things we have done is we told community board's

          8  that if they want, they can have an inspector for a

          9  half- day a month and go out to particular problem

         10  properties, which they help us focus on, or

         11  particular blocks where they have seen a lot of

         12  complaints, and where they think they are very

         13  legitimate.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Just two

         15  things;  one is the fact of the matter is HPD is

         16  doing neighborhood by neighborhood, working with the

         17  local Tenant Associations to identify places where a

         18  ceiling to floor, or ceiling to basement, roof to

         19  basement inspection is being done, and then of

         20  course, they are doing it with their follow- up unit

         21  as to what the status of the building is, I think

         22  that, the reason I ask all these questions is that

         23  the statistics you gave us, there is an increased

         24  number of applications, obviously that is probably

         25  because of 311, and probably because people are
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          2  feeling the pressure of inspection, I understand,

          3  but that is a very large number I think from 1996 to

          4  2004 as you gave it, so people are, it is still hard

          5  to keep up with, so I guess my concept is that the

          6  things that you just outlined plus perhaps some

          7  tweaking of some bill, it is going to take all we

          8  can to be able to keep people in compliance.

          9                 I actually have some letters here of

         10  institutions, not even developers but, developers as

         11  institutions, or institutions as developers, who are

         12  supposedly in our neighborhood the`good guys' but

         13  acting like the bad guys and that do not have

         14  permits, and I know your wonderful staff will follow

         15  up but it takes that kind of pushing, and it is not

         16  always the squeaky wheel that comes to our

         17  attention, and those are the ones that we follow up

         18  on.  But there are all the other ones that are not

         19  followed up on, so, I appreciate the listing of what

         20  is happening, and I am hoping that together we can

         21  figure out how to address the many new permits and

         22  making sure that the work is done legally.

         23                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25                 I think that concludes your presence
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          2  here, and we thank you very much as always.  You

          3  have been very cooperative, and as you are moving

          4  off, I would just like to mention that your mention

          5  of what HPD is doing is to your credit, Council

          6  Woman Brewer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I think you

          8  had something to do with it, Chair Woman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Anyway, I am

         10  glad to hear that it is working.

         11                 MR. KRAMER:  On behalf of

         12  Commissioner Lancaster, I want to thank you very

         13  much for the time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15                 Andrew Hoffman, is he gone?

         16                 Okay, Mitchell, are you ready?

         17                 Donald Halperin, you want to all come

         18  up?

         19                 And, Mary Ann Rothman, I see you in

         20  the back.

         21                 Mary Ann, would you like to start?

         22                 I usually allow the men to decide who

         23  should start but for some reason or another they

         24  never choose the female, so I have decided to do it

         25  myself.
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          2                 MS. ROTHMAN:  Thank you very much,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 Good afternoon, and thank you all for

          5  this opportunity.

          6                 I am Mary Ann Rothman.  I am the

          7  Executive Director of the Council of New York

          8  Cooperatives and Condominiums, which is a membership

          9  organization for existing housing cooperatives and

         10  condominiums in our City.

         11                 As you very well know, there are lots

         12  of them, and I want to add my comments on potential,

         13  unintended, consequences of the current, the

         14  legislation under consideration, as far as existing

         15  co- ops would be concerned.  And, frankly, Mr.

         16  Kramer gave some wonderful examples.

         17                 In cooperatives, lots of individuals

         18  like to renovate their apartments.  There also are

         19  commercial spaces, some that may be rented, some

         20  that may be held also by shareholders, where

         21  individual renovations are desirable, however, if

         22  there is a pending violation or a fee that is late,

         23  for the cooperative, this would mean that individual

         24  shareholders would be completely stymied from

         25  proceeding, or tenants with work that they would
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          2  like to do.              And, conversely if a

          3  shareholder had done a renovation and there were a

          4  lien or a fine or a problem with their work while

          5  that is being sorted out, it might prevent the

          6  cooperative itself or any other shareholder from

          7  being able to proceed.

          8                 So, I would hope that there would be

          9  an opportunity to look into exactly what the

         10  ramifications would be for cooperatives and

         11  condominiums, and to see if we could iron this out.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes, Mitch.

         14                 MR. POSILKIN:  Good afternoon.

         15                 My name is Mitchell Posilkin, I am

         16  the General Counsel for the Rent Stabilization

         17  Association.  Given the amount of time that has

         18  already passed, I will be extremely brief in my

         19  remarks.

         20                 First of all, I do want to state our

         21  position that with regard to the Department of

         22  Buildings testimony, we concur in total with their

         23  remarks.

         24                 Again, I think many of the examples

         25  that Mr. Kramer gave, demonstrated the real life
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          2  issues that come up with a bill such as this, and

          3  that there is a large gap between the theoretical of

          4  trying to address the real problem of violation

          5  enforcement, and connecting it to permits, and the

          6  reality that many property owners face in the field

          7  in terms of day to day management.  And I think

          8  perhaps one thing that was apparent in listening to

          9  the testimony and the Q and A, was that there seems

         10  to be, I think, it seemed to be some confusion

         11  perhaps as to what the true target of this

         12  legislation is, or maybe it was just unclear to me.

         13                 If the issue is that we need to

         14  address the problems of developers who are ignoring

         15  the law, perhaps, in various ways, then are certain

         16  types of permits and plans that need to, perhaps, be

         17  inter- related to that.

         18                 But the real issue from where we

         19  stand would be the small Mom and Pop property owners

         20  throughout the City, who would be deprived of the

         21  opportunity of getting plans and permits approved

         22  due to, perhaps, the smallest of violations, the

         23  least significant non- hazardous violations of

         24  record, which pose no threat to public health and

         25  safety whatsoever, and previously, I guess there had

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  been a discussion of certifications and why

          3  violations may remain on record when an owner has an

          4  opportunity to certify correction, and I think the

          5  reality for many property owners, again, especially

          6  the smaller property owners throughout the City, is

          7  that for many of them either they; A. Do not know

          8  that they can do so, or B. What ends up happening is

          9  that they often times will certify but certify late,

         10  and I believe the policy at least that at HPD and I

         11  believe at DOB as well, is that when those

         12  certifications are made late, those violations

         13  remain on record.

         14                 So, even though the condition is

         15  cured, there is no hazard to public health and

         16  safety, the bureaucratic problem which arises from a

         17  late certification keeps a violation of record.  So,

         18  those are the sorts of concerns that we have.

         19                 The revenue collection aspects of

         20  this are significant, and that is why I believe city

         21  agencies have retained collection agencies to compel

         22  compliance, and to compel payment, and that there

         23  really is, we believe, there should be a disconnect

         24  between permits and plans on the one hand, and

         25  violations of the most insignificant nature on the
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          2  other.

          3                 With that being said, I will pass it

          4  on.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We will hear

          6  testimony from all three, and then we will take

          7  questions.

          8                 MR. HALPERIN:  First of all, I would

          9  like the record to reflect that if the decision had

         10  been left to me, I would have picked Mary Ann to

         11  speak first.

         12                 MR. POSILKIN:  I am on board.

         13                 MR. HALPERIN:  My name is Donald

         14  Halperin, and I am here today speaking on behalf of

         15  the New York State Association for Affordable

         16  Housing, commonly known as NYSAFAH, which is a

         17  statewide organization of developers and others

         18  involved in the financing and building of affordable

         19  housing.

         20                 The bulk of our 250 members work

         21  throughout New York City's five boroughs, and are

         22  collectively responsible for most of the housing

         23  built with city, state or federal subsidies in New

         24  York City in recent years.

         25                 NYSAFAH respectfully must express its
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          2  opposition to Intros. 232 and 433.

          3                 While we are sympathetic to efforts

          4  help the City collect money it is legitimately owed,

          5  these bills will cause substantial delays to many

          6  affordable housing developments, which will in turn

          7  drive up costs.  Since in most cases added costs

          8  cannot be passed along to the owner or the tenant

          9  while maintaining a unit's affordability, the result

         10  will be that more government subsidy will go to

         11  fewer affordable housing units.

         12                 For subsidized housing the delays

         13  which the new legislation will cause will not result

         14  in greater collections for the City.  Before taking

         15  title to city- owned property or receiving City

         16  financing, affordable housing developers are already

         17  checked by HPD to see if they owe any fines or

         18  arrears on other properties they own.  This process

         19  is part of the project's pre- development period, so

         20  it does not delay the start of the construction.

         21                 But requiring that all violations,

         22  fines, and arrears be cleared before a permit can be

         23  issued for a site will have an especially unfair

         24  impact on affordable housing.  When developers take

         25  title to affordable housing sites, they usually are
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          2  taking on properties that have had troubled

          3  histories.

          4                 Typically, the properties have been

          5  neglected by previous owners and substantial

          6  violations, fines, and arrears have accumulated.

          7                 When the City is involved in the

          8  property's transfer, the new owner is typically

          9  exempted at closing from responsibility for payments

         10  that were charged to the previous owner.

         11                 However, removing violations and

         12  charges from various City databases takes weeks and

         13  sometimes months.  The process can at times by

         14  Kafkaesque, as was the case when a property that had

         15  fines pending for boiler self- inspections that had

         16  not been completed for several years.  The problem

         17  was that the property was vacant and during the

         18  period in question, there was not even a building,

         19  much less a boiler.

         20                 Currently developers can begin work

         21  as soon as they close on a project, sometimes under

         22  a license agreement they begin even earlier, and

         23  these bureaucratic issues are dealt with during

         24  construction.  The proposed legislation could delay

         25  construction substantially.
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          2                 The proposed legislation could also

          3  halt construction once it has begun.  What happens

          4  if a developer receives a violation during

          5  construction, and the violation is not adjudicated

          6  and removed from the record by the time the permit

          7  needs to be renewed?

          8                 These violations are common, sort of

          9  like parking tickets, now we heard about moving

         10  violations but we analogize it to parking tickets

         11  for those of us who have a car in the City, and the

         12  adjudication process can be lengthy.

         13                 If a permit expires with a violation

         14  of fine pending the legislation will effectively

         15  shut down the job.  This would be like having your

         16  drivers license revoked while you contest the

         17  parking ticket.

         18                 Further, by denying a permit if an

         19  inspector cannot gain access to investigate a

         20  complaint, the bill could delay construction

         21  indefinitely.  For instance, a complaint of a

         22  structural change within an apartment would require

         23  that the tenant in that apartment provide access to

         24  the inspector, and if the complaint is validated,

         25  the tenant would also have to provide access to cure
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          2  the violation.  If the tenant chooses not to

          3  cooperate, he or she could prevent the

          4  rehabilitation of a building from going forward.

          5  The complaint would not even have to be valid for

          6  this to occur.

          7                 Finally, the Department of Buildings

          8  is an overstressed and understaffed agency, and is

          9  already the cause of substantial delays which add to

         10  the cost of construction.  To require DOB to check

         11  every owner of 20 percent or more of a property for

         12  any fines, arrears, or violations on any property

         13  they own would add more delays to the already

         14  lengthy and costly plan approval process.

         15                 Because this legislation would add to

         16  the costs and time required to develop affordable

         17  housing, while not producing substantial new income

         18  for the City, NYSAFAH urges that the Council not to

         19  adopt it in its current form.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         21  Donald.

         22                 MR. HALPERIN:  You are welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         24  Member Fidler has a question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Yes, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 I assume the three of you were all

          4  here when I was inquiring of the Buildings

          5  Department about requiring all violations to be

          6  cleared at the time that a property is transferred.

          7                 I am particularly receptive to the

          8  small building owner, I think the gentlemen from RSA

          9  may have referred to it, someone with a six- unit

         10  building maybe two of the apartments have been un-

         11  rentable because they have fallen into disrepair,

         12  not hazardous and probably may well have stopped

         13  paying his taxes because he is short two rental

         14  incomes and he wants to file a permit to fix it so

         15  that the building does become profitable enough for

         16  him to meet his obligations.

         17                 So, I see many of the problems that

         18  you have raised with putting the permit ahead of

         19  other concerns.

         20                 However, when someone is transferring

         21  a property, they are walking away, and invariably at

         22  least in my lifetime, that means they are walking

         23  away with the profit that they have accrued from the

         24  appreciation of the value of their building.

         25                 Do any of you have a problem with the
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          2  notion that all violations have to be cleared before

          3  transferring the ownership interest of the property?

          4                 MR. HALPERIN:  Well, as I alluded to

          5  in my testimony, many of the developers of

          6  affordable housing, in fact, take over property

          7  which have all kinds of violations and problems

          8  attended to them, and the reason they are taking

          9  over the property is to correct the conditions, and

         10  to provide affordable housing. This is done under

         11  close supervision of whatever agency is providing

         12  the funding to do it, and there is often an

         13  understanding that there are outstanding violations

         14  and fines, and that they are never going to be paid

         15  by the previous owner who is not profiting from the

         16  improvement of the property as affordable housing,

         17  and so I do not even know in many cases whether you

         18  can find some of those owners, so trying to clear

         19  the violations with the previous owner who is the

         20  real villain in this case, would not really serve

         21  any purpose.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I would

         23  imagine by`take over' you generally are referring to

         24  some sort of involuntary transfer of an ownership

         25  interest.  And, let us for a moment suggest that
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          2  that would be a waiveable concern, I mean, obviously

          3  if someone is loosing their property in a mortgage

          4  foreclosure, if it is a third- party transfer

          5  program property, it is a distressed property

          6  and`per se', we are hoping that the new owner will

          7  clear the violations.

          8                 But, I am talking about an arms-

          9  length commercial transaction, do you have a problem

         10  then?

         11                 MR. HALPERIN:  I could get back to

         12  you, it is not an issue that we considered but when

         13  you say`arms- length' there may in fact be an arms-

         14  length purchase but it is usually coordinated with

         15  an agency that is going to be providing the funding.

         16    But I can get back to you with a more definitive

         17  answer than that.

         18                 MR. POSILKIN:  If I may, I guess one

         19  of the concerns that we would have with regard to

         20  such a proposal is that, as you know, there are

         21  countless violations that owners are unable to

         22  correct.

         23                 Such as, for example if their tenant

         24  caused violations, just to give one example of

         25  circumstances, conditions in an apartment which are

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  solely within the control of the tenant, caused by

          3  the tenant, and the owner is unable to obtain

          4  access. That is one example in the course of sitting

          5  here, I have not come up with others but certainly

          6  the notion of tenant caused violations, difficulty

          7  in obtaining access to correct certain violations,

          8  the economic ability to correct those violations,

          9  those sorts of factors, I think, need to be taken

         10  into account, and again, I am not sure, you know I

         11  think that at a minimum you would need to, or should

         12  consider the context in which that sale is

         13  occurring.  Oftentimes sales will take into account

         14  the fact, as they are in those examples that have

         15  been suggested here, that there is usually a

         16  correlation between, or there can be a correlation

         17  between the condition of the property, the number

         18  and extent of violations, and the sales price.

         19                 So, in fact, you may want to

         20  encourage the new owner, in fact, to make those

         21  repairs and correct those violations. It may, in

         22  fact, be the new owner who, upon taking title, is

         23  the one who is more responsible, more appropriate

         24  with a better public agenda in mind than, perhaps,

         25  the prior owner.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  But your

          3  effect in that case, making the case on behalf of an

          4  irresponsible owner who may have neglected his

          5  building, and sucked all the equity out of it, and

          6  could be very well walking away, maybe at the

          7  closing, with no money but having taken the equity

          8  out beforehand.

          9                 MR. POSILKIN:  All I mean to say is

         10  that there are many different variables, and I think

         11  that we would need more time to consider the nature

         12  of the proposal.

         13                 I think there are many, many

         14  variables that we need to take into account before

         15  we could really take a position on a bill such as

         16  what you are discussing.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I think you

         18  also would have to consider the possibility of a

         19  mechanism by which an escrow is created at closing,

         20  that would allow the deed to be recorded, with that

         21  escrow being held to insure the clearance of the

         22  violations, perhaps even used for the clearance of

         23  the violations, as one mechanism where on those

         24  occasions when the bank does care about a violation

         25  on transfer of title.  That is used rather commonly.
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          2

          3                 I would ask each of you to give some

          4  thought to that mechanism, and let me know, I

          5  realize that an idea that is thrown at you that

          6  really germinated in my own mind only recently.  I

          7  do not expect you to have fully analyzed, although

          8  sometimes I think Mr. Halperin is able to do that.

          9                 But, if you would please, get that to

         10  me.  I would very much appreciate hearing from you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         12  Member Fidler, are you considering introducing such

         13  legislation?

         14                 Is that why we have such an interest?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I

         16  clearly think that what Council Members Sears and

         17  Weprin have hit on is a problem that festers, and I

         18  am extremely concerned that violations are allowed

         19  to exist, persist on record without any consequence,

         20  that the fines go unpaid, and that properties get

         21  transferred from homeowner to homeowner, and by the

         22  time someone may care, it is three homeowners back

         23  that the violation occurred.  And, I think something

         24  has to be done and yet I have heard a lot of

         25  legitimate, practical problems with the mechanisms
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          2  that we have here before us.

          3                 I am just trying to see if there is

          4  another way to get to the goal, which is an

          5  extremely laudable one, and I really have not heard

          6  anyone, I think given the number of properties in

          7  which are transferred here in the City, which we

          8  probably can get from finance, this might be a

          9  measure that would go a long way without hurting

         10  housing and proper permitting to cure the problem

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         12  Member Jackson, you had a question?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 I heard you loud and clear when

         16  either both or one of you spoke about the

         17  bottlenecks in the system that really ties the hands

         18  of building owners and developers as far as when

         19  they pay a fine, and if in fact it is not removed

         20  and all of that.  I can understand your frustration

         21  about that.  I clearly can, not because I am an

         22  owner, because I have dealt with bottlenecks in the

         23  system myself, and I think that I am more astute in

         24  resolving issues or concerns than the average New

         25  Yorker, and so, I can understand the frustration.
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          2                 I have made a note that we have to

          3  address that, and maybe Madam Chair, we need to hold

          4  a hearing to deal with these particular issues of

          5  the bottlenecks within the DOB or HPD, so that your

          6  process as far getting permits and what have you are

          7  done much quicker.  Because, obviously, I hear on a

          8  continuous basis that many owners and developers are

          9  hiring expediters in order to expedite the processes

         10  in the various agencies, and I know that that is a

         11  cost factor there.

         12                 But also, I understand, and as you

         13  know, I have signed on as a sponsor of Intro. 232

         14  because I do understand the issues and concerns that

         15  have been raised and that is why my colleagues have

         16  introduced these bills.  So, I think that we have to

         17  find a way to address all of these issues or

         18  concerns.

         19                 I just wanted to get clarification, I

         20  guess, from the representatives from RSA, and I am

         21  reading on the fourth paragraph that says,`as a

         22  practical consequence, building owners', indicating

         23  that building owners may be going to, if in fact we

         24  pass this law, maybe move to violate the law in

         25  order to get their work done.  I know you are not
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          2  suggesting that, are you?

          3                 MR. POSILKIN:  What I am suggesting,

          4  actually I think, coincides with the concerns

          5  expressed by the Department of Buildings, and the

          6  concern is whether you are going to accomplish the

          7  goal that you are seeking to accomplish with the

          8  legislation. Or, whether something counterproductive

          9  is going to result, and as Mr. Kramer articulated in

         10  his testimony, and as I have alluded to in the memo,

         11  the concern is whether owners as a consequence of

         12  this will end up being so daunted by the dilemmas

         13  presented by this legislation that they might,

         14  ultimately, choose to do--.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Violate the

         16  law.

         17                 MR. POSILKIN:  To do the work, and

         18  again, I am certainly not sitting here and

         19  suggesting or encouraging that action.

         20                 What I am trying to do, and I believe

         21  Mr. Kramer did quite well in his testimony, was

         22  point out that there is the old notion that for

         23  every action there is a reaction, and for many

         24  property owners who are confronted by laws that are

         25  daunting for them, there are ways in which they deal
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          2  with it.  Some struggle and they do comply, and some

          3  cannot comply and they ultimately circumvent the

          4  law.  And then, there are repercussions for that.

          5  There are fines, there can be fines, there can be

          6  penalties, there can be other consequences, but that

          7  is what oftentimes happens certainly to the less

          8  sophisticated property owners who are faced with

          9  this gauntlet of obstacles to the work that they

         10  need, and want to do.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I think that

         12  you are right. Where there is a situation, there is

         13  an action and a reaction, and I think that these

         14  proposed pieces of legislation are reaction to the

         15  way conditions exist.  So, my question to you as a

         16  representative of RSA, with a membership of over

         17  25,000 owners and managers, what are you doing in

         18  order to communicate to your membership as far as to

         19  make sure that it complies with the law, as far as

         20  correcting violations and/or paying their fines?

         21                 Is that being addressed by your

         22  association and by the other associations, so that

         23  we will not have any problems to conditions that

         24  should not be existing?

         25                 MR. POSILKIN:  Well, we have done a
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          2  couple of things as an organization.

          3                 The first thing that we do, and I

          4  guess, is that we conduct seminars for our members,

          5  and for non- members.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

          7                 MR. POSILKIN:  And the best and most

          8  recent example is, in fact, the lead paint law that

          9  was passed earlier by the Council, and in the last

         10  couple of months we have had probably over a

         11  thousand attendees at different programs that we

         12  have held to educate owners in what they need to

         13  know to comply with Local Law One.

         14                 So in fact, that is an example,

         15  probably the best and most vivid example of

         16  attempting to educate our people both in the form of

         17  in- person seminars, video tapes, DVD's,

         18  newsletters, whatever there may be to educate them

         19  in what is required by the law.

         20                 The Carbon Monoxide Detector Law is

         21  another example where we are actively are educating

         22  our members to ensure compliance, or to attempt to

         23  ensure compliance.

         24                 On the other hand, we are active in

         25  other aspects as well, which is to try to get public
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          2  officials to confront a Housing Code for example,

          3  which is exhaustive in its detail, and perhaps there

          4  are violations in the Housing Code that maybe should

          5  not be violations.

          6                 Perhaps there are some non- hazardous

          7  violations which should not be on the books at all,

          8  and so, we are also attempting to deal with the

          9  situation in that way, to ask for a re examination

         10  of what are violations?  Why are so many violations

         11  corrected but not certified?

         12                 Maybe there is a problem with the

         13  certification process, maybe there are issues with

         14  regard with the manner in which legal papers are

         15  served by the City on property owners which results

         16  in the write- off, presumably, every year of

         17  millions of dollars in uncollectible sums, precisely

         18  because the papers were defective at the outset.

         19                 So, I think the problem is multi-

         20  faceted, and RSA certainly does its part to educate

         21  its members and other property owners.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I hope

         23  that the response would be the same from the other

         24  two representatives here because I agree that this

         25  is not an easy problem.
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          2                 This is just one aspect of it, and so

          3  I look forward to working with you to try to deal

          4  with this, and especially the bottleneck issues, and

          5  maybe Madam Chair we should have a hearing on why

          6  the bottlenecks are there for the various agencies

          7  that seems to be problematic.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         11  Member Weprin.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes, thank

         13  you Madam Chair.

         14                 Mr. Halperin referred to the goal of

         15  232, my being the prime sponsor, to collect revenue

         16  for the City of New York.

         17                 I am chairman of the Finance

         18  Committee, I do appreciate uncollected fines, and I

         19  do appreciate any money we can get in tough fiscal

         20  times but that was not really the intent of this

         21  legislation.

         22                 The intent of this legislation

         23  resulted in the number one complaint at every town

         24  hall meeting I have conducted, every civic

         25  association I have attended, more correspondence
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          2  from constituents than any other issue these past

          3  three years that I have been in the City Council,

          4  and there are a number of community and civic

          5  leaders in the audience waiting to testify as to

          6  what is happening in eastern Queens, where I live,

          7  but the major problem is not that this legislation

          8  is going to encourage more illegal activity or

          9  circumventing the process, the problem is that there

         10  is this illegal activity in very large numbers by a

         11  number of unscrupulous developers and owners, which

         12  is probably overall a small percentage of the

         13  overall developers in the City of New York.        I

         14  would think that the industry would not want them

         15  all to painted with the same brush, and something

         16  has to be done because you will hear from, I would

         17  hope you would hang around and hear from a number of

         18  the civic leaders who are day to day with these

         19  types of issues because I am kind of outraged by the

         20  response of the Building Department today that we

         21  are afraid that if you pass this legislation that it

         22  is going to encourage more people to circumvent the

         23  law and to do illegal activity.

         24                 The only thing I can compare that to,

         25  and Mr. Halperin referred to moving violations, if
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          2  someone is convicted of multiple DWI offenses and

          3  looses their license because of points for a period

          4  of time or permanently, the fact that having strict

          5  laws on DWI and on driving restrictions as to

          6  illegal driving, would encourage people to drive

          7  without a license because clearly, anybody can just

          8  get into a car and drive a car without a license,

          9  and they are doing fine until they are caught, and

         10  until they are stopped by a police officer, nobody

         11  would know that they did not have a drivers license,

         12  so I certainly think this legislation is no

         13  different than any other legislation where certainly

         14  it should not be a goal of our intent to do what is

         15  right for the public, for the citizens of the City

         16  of New York, to worry that if we impose these laws

         17  that people will just do illegal activity outside of

         18  the law.

         19                 I use the same example as, I would

         20  not worry about people driving their cars illegally

         21  without a license, what I would try to do is have

         22  more enforcement maybe, and if it was a problem of

         23  that, and try to enforce the existing laws, not do

         24  laws that are good because we are worried about

         25  people doing illegal activity because of the laws.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          3  Woman Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, very

          5  quickly.            Regarding RSA, I think I

          6  understand on affordable housing because I am more

          7  familiar with those developers who take over a

          8  building, there is a violation numerous and that is

          9  why in many cases when you are taking over the

         10  building, and I think also there is some notion what

         11  you want to create that would be, more or less,

         12  violation free because there is not that same profit

         13  motive. My question though is why do you think that

         14  individuals are not correcting some of these

         15  violations?

         16                 It cannot just be that the tenants in

         17  their apartments are adding to the list.  I mean, I

         18  want to get your opinion on that.

         19                 Why is it so complicated to correct

         20  some of these violations, particularly the non-

         21  hazardous one?

         22                 MR. POSILKIN:  Well, I think there is

         23  a wide cross section of types of property owners.

         24                 I think there is a wide diversity in

         25  the nature of the particular types of conditions.
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          2  So, in other words, I think that you have apartment-

          3  specific issues, in other words, violations within

          4  an apartment.  That is a segment.

          5                 You have certain reoccurring types of

          6  violations in common areas, such as signs that are

          7  put up that are pulled down on a regular basis, due

          8  to vandalism, whether it is a smoke detector, and

          9  now a carbon monoxide detector sign that is supposed

         10  to by posted in the lobby, or some other HPD signage

         11  that is required in the lobby.

         12                 Those are the sorts of common area

         13  violations for example, or the locks to the front

         14  door of the building, where there is lighting in the

         15  hallways, where notwithstanding an owners attempt to

         16  comply, the violations reoccur.

         17                 I think that the other thing that

         18  occurs is that HPD, I think if you spoke to HPD, and

         19  I know that you have an ongoing relationship with

         20  HPD on the Code area, they are constantly going

         21  through their violation database because they

         22  themselves know that they have countless violations,

         23  like I indicated earlier, which in fact have been

         24  corrected but simply not certified as to correction

         25  so that the owner, many owners, and again the less
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          2  sophisticated owners, they will look at a situation,

          3  they will see, let's say for a Class A violation,

          4  they have 90 days to repair, so maybe they have

          5  waited to the 85th day to make the repair and then

          6  they send in a certification too late.  Well, that

          7  violation remains on record, even though the owner

          8  has certified but he certified late.  Other owners,

          9  they cure the condition, and you know they say,

         10   "Well, I am just not going to do it."

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So do you do

         12  education classes on that as well as the carbon

         13  monoxide and the lead bill?

         14                 MR. POSILKIN:  We do, through our

         15  monthly news letter, we do a lot of information

         16  dissemination--.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I get your

         18  news letter.

         19                 MR. POSILKIN:  I mean, so, we do

         20  disseminate as much information as we can.

         21                 On the other hand, as you also know,

         22  many violations are also disputed.  Many violations

         23  end up in court, where tenants will claim that

         24  violations exist, owners will claim that the

         25  violations either do not exist, or were caused by
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          2  the tenant or caused by circumstances beyond their

          3  control.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am familiar

          5  will all those.

          6                 MR. POSILKIN:  Well, so, I am trying

          7  to give you the feel for why it is not always the

          8  way it seems.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

         10                 MR. POSILKIN:  HPD's record are

         11  indicative of the fact that this is much more

         12  complicated.

         13                 I think they have gone through their

         14  violation database over the years to make sure that

         15  their violations of vacant lots do not exist, things

         16  like that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I will be

         18  quick.

         19                 Do you also think that it is hard for

         20  once the owner has fixed that violation, is it hard

         21  to clarify that with the Department of Buildings?  I

         22  mean, you said that they 85th day is an issue, et

         23  cetera.

         24                 MR. POSILKIN:  Well, the dilemma is

         25  that, as was discussed earlier, with regard to
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          2  having inspectors come back to your building, HPD I

          3  believe, for example, does have a program where if

          4  you pay for an inspection, the inspectors will come.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

          6                 MR. POSILKIN:  Many owners

          7  oftentimes, for a very good reason, or perhaps just

          8  because they are uncomfortable with the idea of

          9  having inspectors in their building any more than

         10  necessary, choose not to participate in that

         11  program.  Why? Because they see the violation has

         12  been corrected, and they simply, other than the

         13  failure to certify, they would prefer not to have an

         14  inspector in their building who can pick almost any

         15  minuscule condition and turn it into a violation.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19                 Any other questions?

         20                 I thank the three of you.

         21                 Richard  Hellenbrecht and Thomas

         22  Diana.

         23                 While they are coming to the table,

         24  we also have testimony here from the Queens and

         25  Bronx Building Association, jointly, with the
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          2  Building Industry Association of New York City.    We

          3  will enter it into the record.

          4                 MR. HELLENBRECHT:  Thank you, Madam

          5  Chair and I am glad there are no females up here

          6  that we have to worry about.  So I will go first.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So you do

          8  not have to make that big decision.

          9                 MR. HELLENBRECHT:  That is it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I am sure

         11  you would have done the same.

         12                 MR. HELLENBRECHT:  After what we

         13  heard, absolutely, no question.

         14                 Good afternoon, Madam Chair and

         15  members of the Buildings Committee and Housing

         16  Committee.

         17                 My name is Richard Hellenbrecht, and

         18  I am speaking today as Chair of Community Board 13

         19  in Queens, and also as Vice President of the Queens

         20  Civic Congress.

         21                 I am here today to support

         22  Introductions Number 232 and 433 concerning the

         23  issuance of building permits for residential

         24  construction.

         25                 The borough of Queens and
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          2  particularly eastern and southeastern Queens have

          3  been overrun with construction that is either

          4  inappropriate to zoning requirements, or unsafe by

          5  its nature.

          6                 The resulting problems manifest

          7  themselves in at least overcrowding and congestion,

          8  and at worst, unsafe conditions, and in too many

          9  cases deaths due to fire and collapse.

         10                 The community is the first line of

         11  defense to identify questionable construction

         12  activity in neighboring homes, and our only recourse

         13  is to file the complaint with the Department of

         14  Buildings for most of these problems.

         15                 There are woefully too few building

         16  inspectors and all to often they are hampered by

         17  access regulations that prevent the physical

         18  inspection without the voluntary agreement of the

         19  occupant.  Most often, the occupant is not there, or

         20  the wrongdoers do not want to submit to inspection.

         21  In the pressure of their hectic schedule, inspectors

         22  are only required to return to a complaint location

         23  once before "resolving" the case.

         24                 Since the Department has no right of

         25  access, existing laws have no teeth.  Dangerous
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          2  violations often continue without punishment or

          3  correction.  Too often, an expansion, extension or

          4  major modification may proceed and be approved

          5  without an inspector ever observing the outstanding

          6  complaint.

          7                 On occasion, an inspection occurs or

          8  the inspector can observe sufficient evidence to

          9  file a violation, which usually goes before the

         10  Environmental Control Board or Housing Preservation

         11  and Development.

         12                 The agency may adjudicate the

         13  violation and issue a fine, but all too often the

         14  fine may remain unpaid and unchecked. The spirit of

         15  these introductions is to ensure that the public is

         16  protected and renters have a greater confidence that

         17  their residence is safe and legal.

         18                 It is critical to note that current

         19  law only allows the Buildings Department to consider

         20  outstanding, uncorrected violations for violations

         21  of Stop Work Orders to deny a permit application.

         22  This has to change.

         23                 I am happy to compliment the efforts

         24  of the Department of Buildings in trying to keep up

         25  with the growing workload of examination and
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          2  complaint inspection.

          3                 In particular, I compliment the

          4  Buildings Information System as a tremendous

          5  resource for interested community members to verify

          6  aspects of the permit and inspection process.

          7  Something must be done, however, to provide

          8  equivalent access to information on the handling ECB

          9  violations, and on collections and follow up DOB

         10  inspections when corrections are mandated.

         11                 I found numerous examples, many

         12  listed below, of violations simply listing dismissed

         13  or dismissed on affidavit, but with no explanation.

         14                 In addition, many ECB entries show

         15  that fines may or may not have been paid, but the

         16  remedy is annotated as "obtain a permit or restore

         17  to legal condition..." Yet no evidence of a refiling

         18  exists in Buildings Information System or apparently

         19  has any effort been made to check.  Several example

         20  of these issues follow.

         21                 These introductions, in part, are

         22  intended to mandate the inspection of prior

         23  complaints to protect the occupants and the public,

         24  to ensure the correct, legal and appropriate usage

         25  of structures and to require the payment of the
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          2  necessary and appropriate fines, penalties and

          3  taxes.

          4                 I urge you to adopt these and

          5  additional legislation that will compel the

          6  Department of Buildings, the Environmental Control

          7  Board and Department of Housing and Preservation and

          8  Development to strictly enforce the zoning and

          9  building code and other applicable laws for the

         10  health and safety of our residents and the continued

         11  quality of life of our communities.

         12                 I have listed 13 or so specific

         13  instances which occur within my community board, but

         14  more than likely within a few blocks of my home, and

         15  have just come to my attention in the last couple of

         16  months.

         17                 I am not going to read them, you can

         18  read them at your leisure, and there are some

         19  photographs in the slide presentation that is

         20  attached as well that indicate the severity of some

         21  of these issues.

         22                 I am here today really to express the

         23  frustration of homeowners, particularly in the small

         24  residential areas of one and two family, and garden

         25  apartments and those type of areas to getting action
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          2  and having issues taken care of with the Buildings

          3  Department.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. DIANA:  Okay, my name is Thomas

          7  Diana.  I am a professional engineer, the son of an

          8  architect, a landlord of a legal, 8- family

          9  apartment building, and a homeowner in Queens.  And

         10  I am one of these persons that keeps hitting Mr

         11  Weprin at these meetings.  He gets his head handed

         12  to him at all of our community meetings.

         13                 I have come here today to prevent the

         14  destruction of affordable, one- family homes for the

         15  construction of illegal, tax free apartment

         16  buildings.  These two bills are only a very small

         17  step in correcting the problems.

         18                 Legitimate families cannot compete

         19  with landlords and contractors when buying one-

         20  family homes.  They have the advantage of illegal,

         21  tax- free apartments.

         22                 As a family man, I can no longer

         23  afford to buy my own home, which I only bought three

         24  years age.  I moved back to the old neighborhood.

         25  The Department of Buildings is continuing their
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          2  twenty year pattern of approving plans for these

          3  apartment buildings;  each specific objection raised

          4  by community organizations and council members is

          5  answered by cute, stock answers from the Department

          6  of Buildings.

          7                 Single family homes are constructed

          8  and sub- divided with center hallways.  What should

          9  be a nominal, two- thousand square foot house, has

         10  grown to 4,350 feet, and it has been approved by the

         11  Department of Buildings.

         12                 Once ample street parking is no more.

         13    Many homeowners cannot use their own driveways

         14  because the Department of Buildings has allowed

         15  huge, raised concrete porches to encroach on

         16  property lines.  Concrete walls are now considered

         17  as fences. Building extensions built on stilts are

         18  now exempt from the maximum foundation restrictions.

         19    Owner homes have been readdressed so the house now

         20  faces the other street so they can be exempted from

         21  the backyard requirements because we had a 30 foot

         22  backyard requirement, but if you turn the lot the

         23  other way, the property is no longer big enough for

         24  a 30 foot back yard, so therefore, they have been

         25  exempted from it.
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          2                 Also, 4,000 square feet houses;

          3  basements were traditionally seven- and- a- half

          4  feet, they are now eight feet but still do not

          5  qualify has habitable space under the 2,000 foot

          6  rule. The list goes on and on.

          7                 There is a continuing simplistic,

          8  racist, stereotypical answer to our objection of

          9  these multi- family homes. They have big families.

         10  Everybody seems to have big families.

         11                 While most of my co- workers, friends

         12  and family are foreign born, none of them are living

         13  with three- and- four family units, with vehicles

         14  registered in four different states.

         15                 I am not discussing legitimate

         16  grandparents living in a child's home, that should

         17  always be looked at one the side. I am taking about

         18  tax- free rental apartment buildings, okay?

         19                 Legitimate homeowners are being fined

         20  for slop- sinks in the basement, toilets, while the

         21  apartment buildings are exempt. We want the fire

         22  department to inspect these apartment buildings.

         23  They have the necessary skill, and the mentality.

         24  HPD and unlicensed inspectors from the Building

         25  Department are not competent to correct their own
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          2  mistakes. Illegal apartments on my block alone, are

          3  generating almost three times my annual salary in

          4  tax- free income.  I believe there is 14 by my

          5  personal count.

          6                 The City must tie together the

          7  building complaints and the Department of Finance.

          8                 The tax rates and procedures must be

          9  changed to penalize owners who construct the

         10  monstrously, illegal apartment buildings.  There

         11  should be a McMansion square footage tax.

         12                 If you can afford to buy a home, tear

         13  it down completely, and build a 4,000 square foot

         14  home, then you can afford the additional property

         15  tax.  Property taxes would not have to be raised for

         16  single- family, legitimate homeowners if the City

         17  made an effort to collect the taxes.

         18                 One of the things that I am annoyed

         19  about is the fact that the Buildings Department has

         20  said they want to go to Elliott Spitzer to

         21  investigate the source of the complaints that we are

         22  raising with the Buildings Department.

         23                 I am the source of that complaint.

         24  These are some of the houses that they are building,

         25  and people are saying, "Oh, it is people sqoozen

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  (SIC) into these houses, they are building these

          3  huge porches, and we speak to the Buildings

          4  Department about why are these specific items legal

          5  and they send me a pamphlet that they had laying

          6  around in the office with all sorts of scribble

          7  marks on it, and that is what they sent me as a

          8  professional engineer."

          9                 Now, I wanted very much to answer Ms.

         10  Brewers question, that is why I stopped her from

         11  running out.

         12                 I also have an eight- family

         13  apartment building.  The reason we do not file for

         14  the corrections for a lot of these properties is

         15  one; the City charges us $300.00 if we want them to

         16  come in and inspect the apartments.  Three hundred

         17  dollars a clip.

         18                 Second thing is; we have had some

         19  amazing arguments with the Building Inspectors.  I

         20  have had arguments over which is the front of my

         21  building.  I own a railroad flat in the middle of

         22  the block, and they argue with me over which is the

         23  front of the building because they said the front

         24  bedroom, there was a problem with it.  And I said,

         25   "Okay, let us go to the front bedroom."  And they
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          2  went to the back bedroom, and they go "no, this is

          3  really" --  I said, "What are you talking about?

          4  This is the front of the building, this is not the

          5  back of the building."

          6                 It is amazing the mentality of the

          7  inspectors, how little they understand about their

          8  own work, okay?  I had guys see door bell wires with

          9  my doorbell downstairs, and he says, "Oh, that is an

         10  electrical violation."  I go, "No that is not, that

         11  is all 12- volt wiring, that is wires from my

         12  speakers, that is not it." They are amazingly bad.

         13                 The other reason owners do not

         14  actually correct violations is because of the, there

         15  is a provision in the Rent Control Law, the you have

         16  to correct 80 percent of your violations, and 100

         17  percent of your rent- impairing violations.  So, if

         18  you have one violation, they will not give you your

         19  seven- and- a- half percent increase.  But, if you

         20  have many and you self- certify that they are

         21  corrected, then you do not have to correct that one

         22  outstanding violation.  Now, that seems a little

         23  crazy and you are looking a little puzzled at me but

         24  I had a violation for small items; painting, door

         25  knobs and so forth.  Then I had a violation that was
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          2  going to cost me $10,000 to repair.  As long as

          3  those others were on the books these minor little

          4  violations, I could still certify that the

          5  apartments met the 80 percent criteria.  If I

          6  certified that I fixed all these little, minor

          7  items, suddenly I could not get my idea of my rent

          8  increases, and that is the mentality of the

          9  Buildings Department.  They do not know what they

         10  are doing.

         11                 Honestly, I tell you that as a

         12  professional engineer and as a contractor.  They do

         13  not see what they are doing.  One guy will pick

         14  north going this way, the other guy will pick north

         15  going this way, and neither one, and the third guy

         16  will not correct anything because he is not sure

         17  which is right, so he will just walk away and wave

         18  his hands.  And, that is what the problem is with

         19  that.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have been

         22  joined by Council Member Joel Rivera.

         23                 David, did you want to make a

         24  comment?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I just wanted
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          2  to say that these two individuals are really, I want

          3  to thank them from coming in for one.  They are both

          4  my constituents, I will disclose that from the

          5  outset.  They are outstanding community leaders and

          6  civic leaders, and their only concern is for the

          7  betterment of their community, our community and

          8  this is not something that is a recent subject of

          9  getting them upset.  It something that is an

         10  accumulative effort of many, many years of illegal

         11  activity on the part of unscrupulous developers, and

         12  it is really a major, major problem in Queens.

         13                 That is why we have instituted, along

         14  with the City Planning Commission, down zoning of

         15  many areas in Queens.  That helps solve some of the

         16  problems but, certainly, this legislation would go a

         17  long way towards cleaning up some of these issues,

         18  and would as a side effect result in additional

         19  revenue for the City of New York that is not being

         20  collected now.

         21                 So, I do appreciate them coming in

         22  and Mr. Hellenbrecht was modest of his activities in

         23  the beginning but he serves as a long- standing

         24  chair of a major community board that effects four

         25  council districts, including Council Member Comrie's
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          2  district, and Council Member Sanders district, and

          3  is there a fourth council member?  Three council

          4  members, and has been a chair and very active in

          5  Community Board 13 for many, many years and, of

          6  course, has served as an officer of the Queens Civic

          7  Congress, all volunteer work in all cases, and all

          8  because of his love for the community and for his

          9  desire to improve the community and to do well.  And

         10  I thank you for your coming here today to City Hall.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         12  Member Comrie.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well, I want

         14  to echo Council Member Weprin's comments on Richard

         15  Hellenbrecht, who has been a human dynamo, and in

         16  terms of also not just the community board chair and

         17  land use and trying to protect the history and

         18  dignity of the communities in which he serves, and

         19  all of his associations have been towards that end.

         20  His involvement in Queens Civic Congress, his

         21  involvement with land use issues, I think he might

         22  be as conversant with primarily land use issues but

         23  down zoning and rezoning with as much as anyone else

         24  in the City, and I just want to thank him for coming

         25  and bringing his testimony.
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          2                 You heard the Buildings Department

          3  and the other people that testified today.

          4                 Do you have any specific comments on

          5  their testimony that you want to share with the

          6  Committee?

          7                 MR. HELLENBRECHT:  Well, probably a

          8  lot but I have not thought it through entirely.

          9                 I think it is the obligation of the

         10  City to provide a safe environment in which to live,

         11  and I certainly as I said before, am sympathetic to

         12  the Department with the significant increase in the

         13  number of applications for new construction as well

         14  as the number of complaints, particularly since 311

         15  has come through.

         16                 I would question the statement that

         17  they made that they are working with the community

         18  boards to filter down and get to the 311 issues with

         19  regard to buildings complaints.  I really can say

         20  that I do not believe that that happens.

         21                 I am sorry Council Member Brewer left

         22  as well because she knows that I have worked very

         23  closely with her on

         24  the 311 legislation to provide data to the community

         25  boards.  There is no data whatsoever that filters
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          2  down to the community boards from 311.  In fact, I

          3  think it has gone the other way.

          4                 I had a very close relationship with

          5  the Buildings Department with regard to filing

          6  complaints on the old- fashioned

          7  pink forms, and they now no longer accept them but

          8  they never told us they were not accepting them, and

          9  now you cannot even file on line, you have to call

         10  311, which I have to say is great, I have gotten

         11  good responses on the few cases that I have.  But,

         12  it has taken away the direct relationship that we

         13  have had with some of the people at the Buildings

         14  Department.

         15                 My district manager still has direct

         16  connection, and that is fine, and some of the staff

         17  members but I do miss already the ability to compile

         18  information and to track complaints that I had

         19  before.  It is now a lot more work for me to go

         20  personally and check every address in the BIS

         21  system, but the data that is there is fantastic.

         22                 I am looking forward to the passage

         23  of the 311 bill and starting to receive actual data

         24  from the 311 system.  Not only with regard to

         25  Buildings complaints but all other issues that
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          2  effect community boards, and the quality of life in

          3  our area, DOT issues, potholes, and everything else.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          6  Member Sears?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I just have a

          8  comment.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I am sorry.

         10  Leroy's mouth is still moving.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Oh.  I would

         12  never interrupt my Chair, never.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Now you made

         14  me forget my question.

         15                 But, I just wanted to, you are also

         16  aware Richard that a lot of the problems is that

         17  Buildings Department is somewhat dysfunctional in

         18  their ability to do inspections, and have inspectors

         19  go out, and even the effectiveness of them getting

         20  access to a site.

         21                 Do you think there is some happy

         22  medium that we could resolve to this issue?

         23                 MR. HELLENBRECHT:  Access is probably

         24  one of the most difficult issues you are going to

         25  face, and the City rightfully believes a lot in the
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          2  privacy of a persons home, and I have got

          3  significant issues that will never be resolved

          4  because the inspectors will never allow people to

          5  come in.

          6                 My bigger problem is that they`close'

          7  or`resolve' and issue after only two visits, and the

          8  word resolve really irks me, which is why I put it

          9  in quotes in my comments.  Because, it is not

         10  resolved, if they have not seen it, it is not

         11  resolved.  If they do not know if it is there or not

         12  there, it is not resolved. It should be kept in

         13  open, and that was part of my intent when I first

         14  talked to David, Council Man Weprin about this.

         15  This type of legislation is that an issue should be

         16  kept open in some way, if it is a complaint and has

         17  not been looked at, and that at some point it must

         18  be looked at.  And part of my intent is that before

         19  a house can transfer, or before a permit can be

         20  issued for new work at the same location, other than

         21  a repair, that that is the one time that we have

         22  teeth, that the City has teeth to say, "Okay, you

         23  want a permit, you are going to have to let us come

         24  in and take a look at whether or not that illegal

         25  basement apartment or illegal attic or whatever the
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          2  case may be, and it should be a substantial issue,

          3  not some of these minor issues we have been hearing

          4  about.  But, this is the time that we have teeth, is

          5  when they are asking for something and I think then

          6  the privacy issue is not a concern

          7  to me.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          9                 Let us try this again.

         10                 Council Woman Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 I want to thank both of you for being

         14  here.  Several years ago, I am so familiar with

         15  Board 13 because when SNAP started there was a

         16  director, and the slogan was`SNAP with Wrap' because

         17  the directors name was Wrap, and you have a very

         18  strong board. That board, David, is really is to be

         19  commended for the shape it is in, and it does.

         20                 You know, I think that when you get

         21  back and in the intent of both bills is basically

         22  not to deal with the bungling operations of the

         23  Buildings Department, which I must say this present

         24  commissioner has inherited, and is doing everything

         25  she can to see that that is corrected.
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          2                 The intent, the purpose is to really

          3  deal with overwhelming, increasing wrongs that are

          4  happening in communities. They are evidenced in

          5  yours, they are evidenced in mine, throughout the

          6  borough of Queens, and certainly throughout the

          7  City.  They may need to be tweaked a little bit but

          8  that is what hearings are about but I do not want

          9  anyone to loose sight, and the testimony that we

         10  heard today from the Buildings Department, and from

         11  the RSA and Affordable Housing is that if you do

         12  things to correct the wrongs, it can lead to

         13  furtherance of illegal happenings.

         14                 I find that so absurd, I really have

         15  to make that comment and I know you did.  It is

         16  really bad, and I know that if you take that back to

         17  your community boards, they are going to be

         18  astounded really because there is not, of all the 14

         19  boards in Queens, and 59 in the City, I do not think

         20  that there is one that is not faced with this

         21  problem of irresponsible development. Whether it is

         22  taking one house and putting three and four units in

         23  it, or whether it is taking a multi- development and

         24  certainly high rise.  They know where the violations

         25  are, there has been this concentration on the small
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          2  business man.

          3                 You know, there is a lot of help for

          4  them and they know how to use their elected

          5  officials, I am sure from what is happening with

          6  that.  The focus is not punitive for anybody but it

          7  certainly to protect and preserve the integrity of

          8  all our communities and Board 13, and your district

          9  and throughout, and mine, has been very responsible.

         10    And why there are so many volunteers throughout

         11  the communities in the City of New York that work to

         12  protect the integrity of the communities, and I

         13  really found it, kind of, a little overwhelming that

         14  even though they did not come out right and say we

         15  turn the cheek, the fact is, if you did look you

         16  would be creating other problems.  That was the

         17  bottom line with it, so, thank you very much for

         18  being here because it was refreshing to hear you,

         19  and good work for having your constituents come out,

         20  David, I think that is a big, big thing to do.

         21                 And, thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         23                 We also have testimony from Andrew

         24  Hoffman, President of the Community Housing

         25  Improvement Program, and that will be entered into
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          2  the record.

          3                 Intro. 232, 2004, and Intro. 433,

          4  2004 will both be laid over.

          5                 Thank you everyone.

          6                 This hearing is closed.

          7                 (Hearing adjourned 3:25 p.m.)
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